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Let process issue as prayed for.

(Sgd.) J. T. DE BOLT,
Judge, Circuit Court, 1st Circuit.

Dated Aug. 7, 1919.

In the Circuit Court of the First Judicial Circuit,

Territory of Hawaii.

AT CHAMBEES—IN EQUITY.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Un-

der the Will and of the Estate of JAMES
GAY, Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA OAY, REGINALD
ERICK GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON,
HELEN FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY,
EVA GAY, a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a

Minor, SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA
GAY, a Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K.

GAY, a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS,
a Minor, WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a

Minor, ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and

ETHEL FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.
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Petition.

To the Presiding Judge of the Circuit Court of

the First Circuit, Sitting at Chambers in

Equity

:

Your petitioners, H. Pocke and H. M. von Holt,

both of the City and County of Honolulu, Territory

of Hawaii, trustees under the will and of the

estate of James Gray, late of Mokuleia, Waialua,

in the said City and County of Honolulu, deceased,

respectfully represent to your Honor as follows:

1.

That the said James Gay duly made and pub-

lished his last will and testament in writing on

the 25th day of May, 1893; that a copy of the said

will is hereto attached, and your petitioners here-

inafter called the ^' complainants," beg leave to re-

fer to the original thereof on the hearing of this

their petition; [1*]

2.

That the said James Gay thereafter, to wit, on

the 28th day of May, 1893, died without altering

or revoking his said will; that the said will was on

the 11th day of July, 1893, duly proved in the

proper court of said Territory; that on the last-

named date letters testamentary under the said

will were duly issued to the complainant, H. Pocke,

and one Mary Ellen Gay, late of said Mokuleia,

deceased, widow of said James Gay, and the said

H. Pocke and Mary Ellen Gay thereupon took upon

*Page-number appearing at foot of page of original certified Tran-
script of Record.
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.themselves the execution of the said will and by
virtue thereof possessed themselves of all of the

personal estate of the said testator, which was
more than sufficient to answer and satisfy all his

just debts and funeral and testamentary expenses;

that the said Mary Ellen Gay died on, to wit, the

5th day of April, 1895, and that on the 20th day of

December, 1895, the accounts of the said H. Focke,

the surviving executor of the estate, were approved
.and the administration of the estate closed;

3.

That in and by the said will the said H. Focke
and the said Mary Ellen Gay were nominated and
appointed the trustees thereunder; and after the

death of the said Mary Ellen Gay and on, to wit,

May 20, 1895, one Cecil Brown, late of said Hono-
lulu, deceased, was duly appointed a cotrustee of

the said estate with the said H. Focke in the place

and stead of the said Mary Ellen Gay, and there-

after and up to the 29th day of June, 1915—when
the resignation of the said Cecil Brown as such

trustee was accepted—the said H. Focke and Cecil

Brown were the duly appointed, qualified and act-

ing trustees under the said will; that on June 29,

1915, the complainant H. M. von Holt was duly

appointed a cotrustee of the said estate. [2]

4.

^
That at the time of his death the testator was

possessed of, interested in and entitled unto con-

siderable personal estate, and of no freehold estate

whatsoever, and that at the inception of the trust

created in and by his said will the said personal
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estate was of a value as shown by the inventory of

the executors of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,-

000.00) or thereabouts and consisted of:

(a) A leasehold from one J. P. Mendonca dated

the 27th day of May, 1884, for the term of fifty

(50) years of a certain tract of land situated at

said Mokuleia, held, owned and controlled by the

said J. P. Mendonca—the said leasehold being

hereinafter referred to and called the ^^ Mokuleia"

lease or leasehold—of the term of which leasehold

there was at the time of the testator's death an

unexpired residue of forty-one (41) years or there-

abouts.

(b) A herd of cattle, horses and other livestock

and certain farm, dairy and household effects run-

ning, situate and being on said ^^ Mokuleia" lease-

hold; and

(c) A certain leasehold (hereinafter referred to

and called the ^^Ookala" lease or leasehold) held

by the testator from the Commissioners of Crown
Lands of the Government of Hawaii under date

of March 1, 1876, the said lease comprising the

Ahupuaa of Humuula and being for the term of

twenty-five (25) years from that date and a sub-

sequent extension thereof for an additional term

of seven (7) years, and as to which lease the said

James Gay had disposed of all his rights there-

under except as regards that portion of the said

Ahupuaa which was subleased [3] by him to the

Ookala Sugar Plantation Company, Limited, under

date of June 17, 1881—the rental reserved in said

sublease being a percentage of the sugar, or the
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process thereof, grown by said Ookala Sugar Plan-

tation Company, Limited, on said land so subleased

;

that the residue of the term of said sublease was at

the death of the testator some seven (7) years, and

the term thereof was thereafter extended by the

trustees to the 1st day of February, 1908.

5.

That in and by the said will all of the estate of

the testator was bequeathed unto the trustees

^therein named upon trust to pay the rents, income,

issues and profits arising therefrom to the said

iMary Ellen Gay for the term of her natural life,

and the said trustees were directed in and by the

said will from and after the death of the said Mary
Ellen Gay to pay one-half (%) of the said rents,

income, issues and profits for the support, main-

tenance and education of Llewellyn Napela Gay,

Reginald Eric Gay, and Arthur Francis Gay, sons

of the testator, share and share alike, and one-half

(%) of the said rents, income, issues and profits

for the support, maintenance and education of

Alice Mary K. Gay, Ethel Pauline N. Gay, Helen

Fanny Gay and Frida Gay, daughters of the testa-

tor, share and share alike, and said trustees were

directed in and by the said will from and after the

death of all of his said children to convey one-half

(%) c>f the trust estate and all additions or in-

crease thereto unto the children of the testator's

sons above named, share and share alike—the child

or children of any deceased child taking the par-

ent's share—and to convey the remaining portion

of the trust estate and all additions or increase
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thereof unto the children of the testator's daugh-

ters above named, share and share alike—^the [4]

child or children of any deceased child taking the

parent's share.

6.

That in and by the said will the testator expressed

his wish and directed that the said trustees, or their

successors, should manage, conduct and carry on

the business of ranching and stock-raising at said

Mokuleia, so long as the same could be done profit-

ably and without loss; and that in and by the said

will the said trustees, or their successors, were em-

powered to sell and convey the testator's property

at Mokuleia at any time when in their discretion

they should think that a sale of all said property

at said Mokuleia would, by reinvestment of the

money realized upon such sale, be beneficial and

inure to the benefit of or increase the trust estate

created under the said will.

7.

That up to the time of his death and for many
years prior thereto the testator was and had been

^residing on the said Mokuleia leasehold and was

and for many years had been conducting and carry-

ing on the business of a rancher and stock-raiser

on the larger portion thereof and was and had been

using in connection with his said ranch and cattle

business and as a part thereof the said herd of

cattle, horses and other livestock and the farm,

dairy and household effects above referred to, and

was at the time of his death subletting and for

many years prior thereto had sublet to divers ten-
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ants small portions of the said Mokuleia leasehold

for the purpose of growing rice and other agricul-

tural products thereon; and that at the time of

his death and for many years prior thereto the

income of the testator was derived solely from hi

said ranch and cattle business at Mokuleia, the

.rentals [5] paid to him by the several sublessees

of the said Mokuleia leasehold, and the rentals

paid to him by the said Ookala Sugar Plantation

Company, Limited, under the sublease hereinabove

referred to and described.

8.

That the complainants, trustees as aforesaid, and

their successors in trust, pursuant to the directions

in the said will contained, carried on the testator's

business of ranching and stock-raising at said Mo-

kuleia until on or about the 9th day of December,

1898, when, with the consent of the then Judge of

this court, a portion of the said Mokuleia leasehold

containing an area of eight hundred (800) acres

or thereabouts was leased by the then trustees to

one B. F. Dillingham for the balance of the term

of the said Mokuleia leasehold at a rental of five

per cent (5%) of the sugar, or the proceeds

thereof, grown thereon; that the said lease to the

said B. F. Dillingham was thereafter assigned to

the Waialua Agricultural Company, Limited, which

company now holds the lands thereby demised to-

gether with an additional area of some sixty-five

(65) acres leased to it directly by the trustees on the

2d day of July, 1902 ; that the trustees continued to

carry on the said business of ranching and stock-
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raising on the rest of the said Mokuleia leasehold

until the 2.8th day of April, 1906, when with the

consent of the then Judge of this court the rest of

the land covered by the said Mokuleia lease was

sublet and is now being sublet to third persons for

the residue of the term of said Mokuleia lease

;

that on said last-mentioned date the livestock, farm^

dairy and household effects were sold by the then

trustees for the sum of Four Thousand Seven

Hundred and Thirty-five Dollars ($4,735.00), of

which said last-named sum the then trustees of the

estate [6] were directed by the said Court to

..retain the sum of Four Thousand Sixty-five Dol-

lars ($4,065.00) as principal or capital of the tes-

tator's estate.

9.

That the said Ookala lease expired on the 1st

day of February, 1908; that the said Mokuleia

lease will expire on the 30th day of April, 1934

;

and that the income of the estate consists wholly of

the rentals reserved in the various subleases made

by the complainants and their predecessors in trust,

and the income from the principal sum of Four

Thousand Sixty-five Dollars ($4,065.00) above

named or the securities in which the same has

from time to time been invested..

10.

That the children of the testator now living and

who are named as respondents herein (and are

hereinafter referred to as ^Hhe life tenants'') are

as follows: Llewellyn Napela Gay, residing in

Honolulu aforesaid ; Reginald Eric Gay, residing in
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Honolulu aforesaid; Arthur Francis Gay, residing

in the City of San Francisco, California; Alice

Mary K. Richardson, wife of Thomas Everett

Eichardson, residing in the City of Oakland, Cali-

fornia; Helen Fanny Gay, residing at Corcoran,

California, and Frida Gay, residing at San Jose,

California, and that the other of the testator's

children, namely, Ethel Gay, died, unmarried on

or about the 18th day of July, 1902.

11.

That the grandchildren of the testator, being

^children of the testator's children named in the

said will, who are now living and are named as

respondents herein (and are- hereinafter referred

to as the ^^remaindermen''), are as follows: Eva

Gay, a minor of the age of seventeen (17) years,

and Beatrice Gay, a minor of the age of ten [7]

years, daughters of Llewellyn Napela Gay and his

wife Rea Jane Gay, residing in the City of San

/Francisco; Sonny James Mokuleia Gay, a minor;

Michael Vanatta K. Gay, a minor, and Llewellyn

Napela Gay, a minor, all residing in Honolulu

aforesaid, children of Reginald Eric Gay; Albert

'Gay Harris, a minor, Walter William Holt, a

minor, Alice K. Holt, a minor, and Ethel Frida

Holt, a minor, all residing in the City of Oakland,

California, children of Alice Mary K. Richardson.

12.

That at all times during their conduct and man-

agement of the testator's estate, the complainants,

trustees as aforesaid, and their predecessors in

trust, have paid all of the net rents, income, issues



10 Eva Gay et al

and profits of the said estate, after paying the ex-

penses of and incidental to the management of

same, to the life tenants, and have made no pro-

vision thereout for the preservation of the capital

or corpus of the said estate, by amortization or

otherwise, save and except in so far as the sum of

Pour Thousand Sixty-five Dollars ($4,065.00)

above referred to has been held and invested by

them from time to time as capital of the said estate.

13.

That in their conduct and management of the

said estate and in paying out all of the net rents,

income, issues and profits of the same to the life

tenants without making any provision for the

preservation of the capital or corpus thereof the

complainants, trustees as aforesaid, and their pre-

decessors in trust were guided by the advice and

instructions of the said Cecil Brown, deceased, who
prepared the said will in accordance with the in-

structions of the testator, professed to know the

testator's intentions in respect to the manner in

which and the persons by whom his estate was to

be enjoyed, and who {8] as above set forth

acted as a trustee of the said estate for upwards

of twenty years.

14.

That the complainants, trustees as aforesaid,

have recently, to wit, within the last few months

been advised by counsel that it is uncertain and
doubtful from the language used in the will of the

testator what the testator's intentions were as to

the respective rights in his estate of the life ten-



vs. H. Focke et ah 11

ants and remaindermen and that it is a matter of

uncertainty and doubt whether under the provi-

sions of the said will and in view of the fact that the

principal, assets of the trust estate, namely, the

said Mokuleia and Ookala leaseholds, were of a wast-

ing and diminishing nature, the trustees of the

said estate were authorized in the past or will be

authorized (Copyist Error) (m Ae p€bst will be

authorized ) in the future to pay out all the net

rents, income issues and profits of the said estate

to the life tenants without making provision out

of said rents, income, issues and profits for the

preservation of the corpus of the said estate for

the benefit of the remaindermen, or whether there

should not have been retained in the past and should

not in the future be retained out of the said rents,

income, issues and profits such sums as may be

necessary for the purpose of restoring for the bene-

fit of the remaindermen the capital or corpus of

ithe said estate to the value thereof at the death

of the testator.

15.

That the complainants, trustees as aforesaid,

desire to carry out the wishes of the testator and to

execute the trusts of the said will, and to the end

that the doubts and uncertainties which have re-

cently arisen may [9] be resolved they desire

and are entitled to the instructions of the Court as

to the relative rights of the life tenants and the re-

maindermen in the trust estate, and as to their

duties in respect to the management of the said
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estate under the said will, and the disposition of the

rents, income, issues and profits thereof.

WHEREFORE THE COMPLAINANTS PRAY:
1. That the respondents may be sunnnoned by

publication or otherwise as the Court may direct

to appear and answer all and singular the premises

and set forth their respective claims and conten-

tions as to the matters therein set forth, and be

bound by the proceedings herein and by such or-

der, direction and decree as to the Court may seem

meet.

2. That a guardian ad litem may be appointed

for said Eva Gay, Beatrice Gay, Sonny James

Mokuleia Gay, Michael Vanatta K. Gay, Llewellyn

Napela Gay, Albert Gay Harris, Walter William

Holt, Alice K. Holt and Ethel Prida Holt, minors,

to represent their interests herein.

3. That complainants may be instructed by this

Honorable Court as to their duties in the execution

of the trusts created by the testator in and by his

said will; that all proper accounts may be taken,

and all necessary directions given for carrying the

testator's intentions into execution.

4. For costs and for such other, further an gen-

eral relief as the nature of the case shall require^

and to the Court shall seem meet.

And the complainants will ever pray, etc.
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Dated: Honolulu, T. H., August 6tli, 1919.

(Sgd.) H. FOCKE,
(Sgd.) H. M. von HOLT,

Trustees Under the Will and of the Estate of

James Gay, Deceased.

W. L. STANLEY,
Counsel for Complainants. [10]

City and County of Honolulu,

Territory of Hawaii,—ss.

H. Focke, being duly sworn, upon oath deposes

and says: That he is one of the complainants

above named, and a trustee of the Estate of James

Gay, deceased ; that he has read the foregoing peti-

tion and knows the contents thereof and that all

and singular the matters and things therein alleged

are true to the best of his knowledge and belief.

(Sgd.) H. FOCKE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 6th day

of August, 1919.

[Seal]

i
(Sgd.) SYLVIA LESLIE BRYANT,

Notary Public, First Judicial Circuit, Territory of

Hawaii. [11]

(COPY)

Exhibit ''A.''

Know all men by these presents that I James

Gay of Mokuleia, Waialua in the Island of Oahu
being of sound and disposing mind and memory
do make publish and declare this my last will and



14 Eva Gay et al

testament, hereby revoking and making null and

void all former wills by me made.

I hereby nominate and appoint my wife Mary
Ellen Gay and my friend Hermann Focke to be the

Executrix and Executor and also the Trustees of

this my will, hereby directing my said executrix

and executor to pay all m}^ just debts and funeral

expenses as soon as they can conveniently do so.

I hereby give, devise and bequeath unto Mary
Ellen Gay and my friend Hermann Focke all my
estate real personal or mixed and wheresoever situ-

ate in trust nevertheless for the uses and purposes

hereinafter set forth, that is to say: to pay the

rents income issues and profits arising from and

out of my said estate to m}^ wife Mary Ellen Gay for

the term of her natural life, and to be applied by

her for the support of herself and the support

maintenance and education of my children born of

the body of my said wife Mary Ellen. And from

and after the death of my said wife I direct my
said Trustees Hermann Focke or his successor in

said trust to pay the rents, income, issues, and

profits arising from and out of said Trust estate

as follows: one half thereof for the support and

maintenance of my sons Llewellyn Napela Gay,

Eeginald Eric Gay and Arthur Francis Gay share

and share alike; and as to the other part thereof

to pay the same for the support maintenance and

education of my daughters Alice Mary K. Gay,

Ethel Pauline N. Ga.y, Helen Fanny Gay, and

Frida Gay, share and share alike.



vs. H. Focke et ah 15

And from and after the death of all my children

born of the body of my said wife Mary Ellen I

direct my said [12] Trustee or his successor to

convey one half of said trust estate and all addi-

tions or increase thereto, unto the children of my
sons Llewellyn Napela Gay, Reginald Eric Gay

and Arthur Francis Gay share and share alike and

the child or children of any deceased child to take

the parents share. And as to the remaining por-

tion of said Trust estate and all additions or in-

crease thereof, I direct my said Trustee or his suc-

cessor in asid Trust to convey the same unto the chil-

dren of my said daughters, Alice Mary K. Gay, Ethel

Pauline N. Gay, Helen Fanny Gay and Frida Gay,

share and share alike, and the child or children of

any deceased child to take the parents share.

And I direct my said Trustee or his successor in

the event of the death of any of my children born

of the body of my said wife Mary Ellen to pay the

share or portion of the income belonging to such

child to the heirs that may survive such child dying.

In the event of the death, resignation or other?

incapacity of my said Trustees or either of them

it is my wish that one of the Judges of the Circuit

Court of the First Circuit of the Hawaiian Islands

shall appoint a new Trustee or Trustees as the case

may be in the place and stead of the one dying,

resigning or becoming incapacitated, and the Trus-

tee or Trustees so appointed shall have all the

powers and authorities as if named herein.

It is my wish and I hereby direct that my said

Trustees or their successors or successor, shall man-
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age, conduct and carry on the business of ranch-

ing and stock-raising at Mokuleia on the Island of

Oahu, so long as it can be done so profitably, and

without loss; and I hereby empower them or their

successors or successor at any time when in their

discretion they think that a sale of [13] all the

.property at said Mokuleia, would by reinvestment

of the money realized from such sale of said prop-

,erty be beneficial and inure to the benefit of or in-

crease the Trust Estate created under this will,

to sell and convey the said property at Mokuleia

free and barred of the Trust created by this will.

And lastly I hereby direct that the executrix and

executor and Trustees herein named shall serve as

such without giving bonds.

In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand

and seal this 25th day of May A. D. 1893.

(Sig.) JAS. GAY. (Seal)

Signed, sealed, published and declared by the

said elames Gay as and for his last will and testa-

ment, in the presence of us, who in his presence,

and in the presence of each other, and at his re-

quest, have hereunto set our names as witnesses

this 25th day of May, 1893.

(Sig.) CECIL BROWN.
(Sig.) JOHN RICHARDSON.
(Sig.) THOS. WM. GAY. [14]
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In the Circuit Court of the First Judicial Circuit,

Territory of Hawaii.

AT CHAMBEES—IN EQUITY.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON,
HELEN FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY,
EVA GAY, a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a

Minor, SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA
GAY, a Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K.

GAY, a Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA
GAY, a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS,
a Minor, WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a

Minor, ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and

ETHEL FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

. Respondents.

Order Appointing Guardian Ad Litem.

It appearing that the respondents Eva Gay,

Beatrice Gay, Sonny James Mokuleia Gay, Michael

Vanatta K. Gay, Llewellyn Napela Gay, Albert Gay

Harris, Walter William Holt, Alice K. Holt, and

Ethel Frida Holt are minors, and that a guardian
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ad litem is necessary to represent them and their

interests in the above-entitled suit:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Harry Ed-

mondson, Esquire, member of the bar of this court,

be and he hereby is appointed guardian ad litem

of said minors to defend the said suit in their be-

half, and that he serve as such without bond.

Done at Chambers in Honolulu this 7th day of

August, 1919.

[Seal] (Sgd.) J. T. DE BOLT,
Second Judge of Said Court Presiding at Chambers

in Equity. [15]

In the Circuit Court of the First Judicial Circuit,

Territory of Hawaii.

AT CHAMBERS — IN EQUITY.

E. No. .

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY,
a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor, SONNY
JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a Minor,
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MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a Minor,

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, a Minor,

ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Answer of Respondents LleweUyn N. Gay et al.

(The **Life Tenants*').

To the Presiding Judge of the Circuit Court of the

First Judicial Circuit, Sitting at Chambers in

Equity

:

Now come the above-named respondents Llew-

ellyn Napela Gay, Reginald Eric Gay, Arthur

Francis Gay, Alice Mary K. Richardson, Helen

Fanny Gay, and Frida Gay, the now living child-

ren of James Gay, deceased (hereinafter also re-

ferred to as the "'life tenants"), and for answer

to the petition of the complainants in the above-

entitled cause, as amended by the addition thereto

of the record in the matter of the estate and trust

under the will of said decedent of record in this

court in Probate Case No. 2849, now say: [16]

1.

These respondents admit the several matters al-

leged and set forth in all of the paragraphs num-

bered from and including paragraph 1 to and in-

cluding paragraph 13 of said petition.

2.

Further answering said petition, and with par-

ticular reference to paragraphs 14 and 15, and to

the prayer for instructions therein set forth, and
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not only in conjunction with but independently of

the allegations of said petition, these respondents

say:

That the ^^Mokuleia" and ^^Ookala" leaseholds,

so called in said petition, were taken and held by

the testator in his lifetime, and were by his will

transmitted to the trustees thereunder as part of

his estate.

That the testator in fact contemplated that said

lease, acquired and used by him in his lifetime,

would be held as part of his estate under the trust

created hj his will; and that the testator must be

presumed to have known that, by holding, the said

leases would ^^wear away'' and ultimately expire.

That it was the intent of the testator, apparent

not only from the direct provisions of his will,

but from all of the surrounding facts and circum-

stances, that all of the rents, income, issues and

profits, arising from his trust estate under said

will, should be paid to the life beneficiaries therein

named, without diminution of any kind; and that

the testator did not contemplate or intend, nor will

the terms of said will permit, that any depreciation

or change in the inherent value of said leaseholds

(or either of them) by reason of their approaching

expiration, should be charged to or borne by the life

beneficiaries, or that their value, as ^^ principal,"

should be preserved intact for the benefit of [17]

the remaindermen by any deductions from the

rents, income, issues or profits arising from the

trust estate, or by any other form of amortization.

That the acts of the trustees, in disposing of the
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livestock and discontinuing the operation of the

ranching business on the demised premises, and
making subleases of portions of the demised lands,

have resulted in greater income and profit being

derived from the trust estate, v^ithout any preju-

dice to the remaindermen by reason thereof.

That the administration of the trust estate, as

heretofore carried on in the manner described in

paragraphs 12 and 13 of said petition, has been

proper and in accordance with law and the terms

of said will and the intent of said testator, and

should not be interrupted or altered.

WHEREFORE, these respondents, being the

^'life tenants" under said trust, pray that the

method of administration of said trust estate by

the trustees under said will, in all of the respects

hereinbefore mentioned and referred to, may be

approved by this Honorable Court, and that the

complainants, as the present trustees under said

will, and their successors in said trust, be instructed

to continue, until the death of all of the testator's

children (the life tenants aforesaid) to pay one-half

of the said rents, income, issues and profits of the

trust estate, including the realizations under said

^^Mokuleia" lease, for the support, maintenance and

education of the sons of the testator, and the other

one-half thereof for the support, maintenance and

education of the daughters of the testator, without

deduction or diminution of any kind to provide

for keeping up or restoring any value of the corpus

of the estate for the benefit of the grandchildren

of the testator, by amortization or otherwise.



22 Eva Gay et al

Dated: Honolulu, T. H. November 26tli, 1919.

[18]

(Sgd.) REGINALD ERIC GAY.
LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY.
ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY.
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON.
HELEN FANNY GAY.
FRIDA GAY.

By Their Attorneys,

(Sgd.) SMITH, WARREN & WHITNEY.

Territory of Hawaii,

City and County of Honolulu,—ss.

Reginald Eric Gay, being duly sworn, deposes

and says that he is one of the respondents who are

named as life tenants in the foregoing answer and

that he makes this affidavit on behalf of himself

and the others of said life tenant respondents; that

he has read the said answer and knows the contents

thereof and that the matters and things therein

set forth are true to the best of his information

and belief.

(Sgd.) REGINALD ERIC GAY,

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 2fi^th

day of November, 1919.

[Seal] (Sgd.) ALBERTA BUDD,
Notary Public, First Judicial Circuit, Territory of

Hawaii.
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We hereby acknowledge receipt of a copy, each

of the foregoing answer ; this 28th day of November,

1919.

(Sgd.) W. L. STANLEY,
Attorney for Complainants.

(Sgd.) H. EDMONDSON,
Guardian Ad Litem of Minor Respondents.

[Endorsed] : E. 2252. 3/1. Circuit Court, First

Circuit, Territory of Hawaii. At Chambers. In

Equity. H. Focke and H. M. von Holt, Trustees

Under the Will and of the Estate of James Gay,

Deceased, Complainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay,

et al. Respondents. Answer of Respondents.

Filed at 10:20 o'clock A. M. Nov. 28, 1919. (S.)

B. N. Kahalepuna, Clerk. Smith, Warren & Whit-

ney, Attorneys at Law, Bank of Hawaii Building,

Honolulu, T. H. [19]

In the Circuit Court of the First Judicial Circuit,

Territory of Hawaii.

AT CHAMBERS — IN EQUITY.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES- GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
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FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY, a

Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor, SONNY
JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a Minor,

MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a Minor,

ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Amended Answer of the Minor Respondents

Above Named.

Now come the minor respondents above named by

Harry Edmondson, their guardian ad litem, and

for amended answer to the petition filed herein

allege as follows:

1.

That the said respondents admit the allegations

contained in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of the said

petition.

2.

In answer to paragraph 4 of the said petition the

said respondents admit that at the time of his death,

James Gay, the testator named in said petition,

was possessed of, interested in and entitled unto

considerable personal estate, but said respondents

have no knowledge or information sufficient to form

a belief that [20] ihe said testator was not pos-

sessed of, interested in or entitled unto some free-

hold estate, and leave the allegations thereof to be

proven by the complainants above named, as they

may be able so to do.
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3.

In further aswer to paragraph 4 of the said peti-

tion the said respondents allege that they may
have no knowledge or information sufficient to form

a belief that at the inception of the trust created

in and by the will of the said testator, his personal

estate was of a value of $20,000.00', and leave the

allegations thereof to be proven by the said com-

plainants. Said respondents admit each and every

other allegation contained in paragraph 4 of the

said petition.

4.

Said respondents admit the allegations contained

in paragraphs 5 and 6 of the said petition.

5.

In answer to the allegations contained in para-

graph 7 of the said petition, said respondents al-

lege that they have no knowledge or information

sufficient to form a belief of any or all of the allega-

tions therein contained, but leave the same to be

proven by the said complainants.

6.

Said respondents admit the allegations contained

in paragraphs 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12 of the said peti-

tion.

7.

In answer to paragraph 13 of the said petition,

the said respondents allege that if the said com-

plainants and their predecessors in trust were

guided by the advice and instructions of one Cecil

Brown named in the said petition in paying out

all of the net rents, income, issues and profits of
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the estate mentioned in said [21] petition, to the

life tenants mentioned in said petition without

making any provision for the preservation of the

capital or corpus of the said estate, they are not

relieved from the duty, responsibility and liability

of executing the trusts in said will contained, ac-

cording to the terms thereof, and according to law.

8.

In further answer to paragraph 13 of the said

petition, said respondents allege that they have

no knowledge or information sufficient to form a

belief that the said Cecil Brown prepared the said

will of the said testator either in accordance with

the instructions of the said testator, or at all, or

that the said Cecil Brown professed to know or did

know the testator's intentions in respect to the

manner in which, and the persons by whom his

estate was to be enjoyed, and leave complainants

to the proof thereof. Said respondents allege that

all the allegations contained in paragraph 13 of the

said petition are irrelevant and immaterial.

9.

In reply to paragraph 14 of the said petition,

said respondents are informed and believe and allege

the fact to be that there is no uncertainty or doubt

under the provisions of the said will that the prin-

cipal assets of the trust estate, namely the said

Mokuleia leaseholds are of a wasting and diminish-

ing nature, and allege^ that the complainants, the

trustees of the same, were not after they ceased

to conduct the testator's business of a rancher

and stock-raiser, authorized by the said will to
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pay out all of the said rents, income, issues and
profits of the said estate to the life tenants, the

respondents above named, other than the said minor
respondents, without [22] making provision out

of the said rents, income issues and profits for the

preservation of the corpus of the said estate for

the benefit of the said minor respondents. Said

minor respondents allege that the said leaseholds and
subleases thereof should have been sold, or there

should have been retained in the past and should

be retained in the future out of the said rents, in-

come, issues and profits, such sums benefit of the

said minor respondents the capital or corpus of the

said estate to the value thereof.

10.

Said respondents are informed and believe, and

allege the fact to be that the said leaseholds and

subleases thereof were of great value at the date

the same should have been sold, and are greatly in

excess of that value now.

WHEREFORE THE SAID MINOR RE-
SPONDENTS PRAY,

1. If it is impossible to ascertain the value of

the leaseholds mentioned in the petition herein,

(a) That the trustees be instructed to take the

value of the leaseholds at the date of the testator's

death, and allow the life tenants 6% interest per

annum thereon and accumulate the surplus for the

benefit of the remainderman; or

(b) To wait until the expiration of the lease,

then ascertain the sum which, if invested at 6%
interest per annum with annual rests would equal
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the total rents received on the subleases after de-

ducting therefrom the total rent paid on the head

lease, and treat that sum as corpus^ and the balance

as income; [23]

2. Or that the trustees be instructed to sell the

leaseholds and treat the proceeds as corpus and in-

vest the same at 6% interest for the benefit of the

life tenants

;

3. For such other and further relief as to this

Court may seem meet ; and

4. That this answer may be taken as a Joinder

to the above named.

Dated, at Honolulu, T. H. January 23d, 1920.

(Sgd.) H. EDMONDSON,
Guardian Ad Litem and Attorney for Said Minor

Respondents.

Service of a copy hereof admitted this 6th April,

1920.

(Sgd.) HARRIET L. NOBLE.
W. L. STANLEY,

Attorney for Complainants.

Service of a copy hereof admitted this 6th April,

1920.

(Sgd.) SMITH & WARREN,
Attorneys for Respondents Life Tenants.

[Endorsed] : E. 2252. 3/1. In the Circuit Court

of the First Judicial Circuit, Territory of Hawaii.

H. Focke and H. M. von Holt, Trustees Under the

Will and of the Estate of James Gay, Deceased,

Complainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al.. Re-

spondents. Amended Answer of Minor Respon-
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dents. Filed at 1:35 o'clock P. M. April 6, 1920.

(S.) B. N. Katialepuna, Clerk. H. Edmondson,

Attorney-at-Law. Honolulu, T. H. Attorney for

Minor Respondents. [24]

In the Circuit Court of the First Judicial Circuit

Territory of Hawaii.

AT CHAMBERS—IN EQUITY.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY, a

Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor, SONNY
JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a Minor,

MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a Minor,

ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Decision.

The complainants, H. Focke and H. M. von Holt,

trustees under the will and of the estate of James

Gay, deceased, on the 13th day of September, 1919,
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filed a petition in this court praying that the

Court instruct them concerning their duties in the

execution of the trust created by the testator in

and by his said will. On the 25th day of May, A.

D. 1893, James Gray executed his last will and

testament. Thereafter, on, to wit, the 28th day of

May, 1893, the said James Gray died without

altering or revoking the said will. On the 11th

day of July, 1893, the said will was duly admitted

to probate in the proper court in and for the Ter-

ritory of Hawaii. On the last-named date, letters

testamentary under the said will were duly issued

to H. Focke and to Mary [25] Ellen Gay, the

widow of the said James Gray. Thereafter on, to

wit, the 5th day of April, 1895, the said Mary Ellen

Gay died, and on, to wit, May 20, 1895, one Cecil

Brown was duly appointed in her stead as cotrus-

tee of the said estate with the said H. Focke. On
the 29th day of June 1915, the said Cecil Brown
resigned, as such trustee and his resignation was

duly accepted. On the said 29th day of June, 1915,

the complainant, H. M. von Holt, was duly ap-

pointed a cotrustee of the said estate, with the

said H. Focke in the place and stead of the said

Cecil Brown. The said H. M. von Holt and the

said H. Focke were at the time of the filing of the

petition herein and are now the duly appointed,

qualified and acting trustees of the said estate.

At the time of the death of the said James Gay

he was possessed of certain property consisting of

a leasehold from one J. P. Mendonca, dated the

27th day of May, 1884, for the term of fifty (50)
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years a certain cattle, horses and other livestock

and certain farm, dairy and household effects

situate and being on said Mokuleia leasehold, and

a certain leasehold from the Commissioners of

Crown Lands of the Government of Hawaii, dated

March 1, 1876, and being for the term of twenty-

five (25) years from that date and a subsequent

extension thereof for an additional term of seven

(7) years. The lands described in the last named
lease, comprised the Ahupuaa of Humuula, and

were situate on the Island of Hawaii. At the time

of filing the petition herein, this lease had ex-

pired and the estate of James Gay no longer had

any interest therein and it need not be further con-

sidered. On the 28th day of April, 1906, the trus-

tees of said estate, acting under the authority

given them by said testator sold and disposed of

the livestock, farm, dairy and household effects and

the proceeds thereof were invested in accordance

with the wishes of the said testator as expressed

in his said will. [26]

The only part of the property owned by the

said James Gay at the time of his death which is

now in the possession of and under the control of

the trustees of his estate, is the leasehold of the

Mokuleia ranch which the said James Gay ac-

quired from J. P. Mendonca. The said James Gay

by his last will and testament devised and be-

queathed unto Mary Ellen Gay and Hermann

Focke all of his estate, real personal or mixed,

upon the following terms and conditions: ^^I

hereby give, devise and bequeath unto Mary Ellen
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Gay and my friend Hermann Focke all my estate

real personal or mixed and wheresoever situate

in trust nevertheless for the uses and purposes

hereinafter set forth, that is to say: to pay the

rents income issues and profits arising from and

out of my said estate to my wife Mary Ellen Gray

for the term of her natural life, and to be applied

by her for the support of herself and the support

maintenance and education of my children born

of the body of my said wife Mary Ellen. And
from and after the death of my said wife I direct

my said Trustees Hermann Focke or his successor

in said trust to pay the rents, income, issues, and

profits arising from and out of said Trust estate

as follows: one-half thereof for the support and

maintenance of my sons Llewelly Napela Gay,

Reginald Eric Gay and Arthur Francis Gay share

and share alike; and as to the other part thereof

to pay the same for the support maintenance and

education of my daughters Alice Mary K. Gay,

Ethel Pauline E. Gay, Helen Fanny Gay, and

Friday Gay, share and share alike.

^^And from and after the death of all my child-

ren born of the body of my said wife Mary Ellen,

I direct my said Trustee or his successor to con-

vey one half of said trust estate and all additions

or increase thereto, unto the children of my sons

Llewellyn Napela Gay, Reginald Eric Gay and

Arthur Francis Gay share and share alike and the

child or children of any deceased [27] child to

take the parents share. And as to the remaining

portion of said Trust estate and all additions or
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increase thereof, I direct my said Trustee or Ms
successor in said Trust to convey the same unto

the children of my said daughters, Alice Mary
Gay, Ethel Pauline N. Gay, Helen Fanny Gay and
Friday Gay, share and share alike, and the child

or children of any deceased child to take the

parent's share.

''And I direct my said Trustee or his successor

in the event of the death of any of my children

born of the body of my said wife Mary Ellen to

pay the share or portion of the income belonging

to such child to the heirs that may survive such

child so dying.

''In the event of the death, resignation or other

incapacity of my said Trustees or either of them
it is my wish that one of the Judges of the Circuit

Court of the First Circuit of Hawaiian Islands

shall appoint a new Trustee or Trustees as the

case may be in the place and stead of the one dying

resigning or becoming incapacitated, and the

Trustee or Trustees so appointed shall have all the

powers and authorities as if named herein.

"It is my wish and I hereby direct that my said

Trustees or their successors or successor, shall

manage, conduct and carry on the business of

ranching and stock raising at Moluleia on the

Island of Oahu, so long as it can be done so, prof-

itably, and without loss; and I hereby empower

them or their successors or successor at any time

when in their discretion they think that a sale of

all the property at said Mokuleia, would by a re-

investment of the money realized from such sale
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of said property be beneficial and inure to the

benefit of or increase the Trust Estate created

under this will, to sell and convey the said prop-

erty at Mokuleia free and barred of the Trust

created by this will." [28]

It will thus be seen that at the time James Gay

made his will, he had in mind two classes of per-

sons for whom he wished to make provision. The

first class was composed of his wife and children,

all of whom were living at the time of his death

and who were the objects of his immediate con-

cern. The second class was composed of his grand-

children who had not yet come into being, and

whose interest in his estate was made entirely

conditional. Of the first class there are now living

Llewellyn Napela Gay, Reginald Eric Gay, Arthur

Francis Gay, Alice Mary K. Gay, Helen Fanny

Gay, and Frida Gay, all of whom are the children

of the said James Gay. Of the second class there

are now living, Eva Gay, Beatrice Gay, Sonney

James Mokuleia Gay, Michael Vanatta K. Gay,

Llewellyn Napela Gay, Albert Gay Harris, Wal-

ter William Holt, Alice K. Holt, and Ethel Frida

Holt, all of whom are the grandchildren of the

said James Gay. The will directs the trustees to

pay, after the death of Mary Ellen Gay, the rents,

income, issues and profits arising out of the estate,

to the enumerated children of the testator, in des-

ignated proportions. Thus was created in them a life

tenancy and they thereby became entitled to the

bequests made for their benefit. Anticipating that

these life tenants might have issue and desiring
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to dispose of the corpus of Ms estate upon their

death, the testator directed the trustees, after the

happening of that event, to convey his estate to the

children of his children in the proportions men-
tioned in the will. The grandchildren, therefore,

of the testator, all of whom came into being sub-

sequent to his death, are the remaindermen, and

as such have a potential interest in the estate.

The conflict precipitated by the filing of the peti-

tion, is between the life tenants and the remain-

dermen in which the trustees occupy a position of

neutrality. In order to determine the contro-

versy and correctly advise [29] the trustees, it

is necessary to bear in mind that the only part of

the James Gay estate now in the possession and

under the control of the trustees, is the unex-

pired term of the leasehold on the Mokuleia prop-

erty. This lease was procured by James Gay
from one Mendonca, on May 27th, 1884, and its

duration was fixed at fifty years. It will, there-

fore, expire on May 26, 1934. At the time it was

executed and for sometime thereafter, the property

conveyed was used as a stock ranch and was of

comparatively small value. Latterly, however, the

development of the sugar industry in Hawaii, and

the adaptation of the land to such uses, has greatly

increased its value, and at the present time, the

income derived from it amounts to $25,887.00 an-

nually. Heretofore the trustees have paid this

income to the life tenants. Their right to do so

under the will has, however, been questioned and

they have very properly sought judicial advice.
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It is contended by the remaindermen that in as

much as they were given an estate in remainder

by the testator in the property devised to the

trustees, and in as much as the only remaining

portion of the estate is the Mokuleia leasehold, and

in as much as the value of this leasehold is con-

stantly diminishing by the lapse of time and will

probably expire and therefore be valueless before

their interest attaches, it is the duty of the trustees

to convert the leasehold into cash and invest the

proceeds in some form of security that will remain

intact for their ultimate benefit. The soundness of

this contention must be determined by the terms

of the will and the canons of testamentary con-

struction.

It must be borne in mind that the property de-

vised to the trustees and from the income of which

they were directed to make provision for the life

tenants, consisted entirely of the leaseholds here-

tofore mentioned. The value of these leaseholds

was [30] not stable and enduring, but by their

very nature became less valuable each year as the

period of their expiration approached. It was

established by the evidence, that at the time the

will was made, and at the time of the death of the

testator, the life tenants now living, were minors

and without issue. So that when the testator' di-

rected his trustees to pay the rents, income and

profits derivable from these leaseholds to his

children and then directed them upon the death of

all his children, to convey his estate to his grand-

children in the proportions designated by his wiU,
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he must have had in mind the possibility that un-

less the character of the estate was changed, the

sources from which his children were to be main-

tained would be exhausted during their lives, and
there would be nothing left for his grandchildren.

If the testator had, therefore, intended to im-

pose upon his trustees the absolute duty of pre-

serving an estate for the benefit of his grand-

children, he would have directed them to convert

the leaseholds of which he was possessed, into a

more permanent form of investment. Instead of

doing this, however, we find the following pro-

vision in his will. ^^It is my wish and I hereby

direct that my said Trustees or their successors or

successor, shall manage, conduct and carry on the

business of ranching and stock raising at Moku-
leia on the island of Oahu, so long as it can be

done so, profitably, and without loss; and I hereby

empower them or their successors or successor at

any time when in their discretion they think that

a sale of all the property at said Mokuleia, would

by a reinvestment of the money realized from such

sale of said property be beneficial and inure to the

benefit of or increase the Trusts Estate created

under this will, to sell and convey the said prop-

erty at Mokuleia [31] free and barred of the

Trust created by this will."

It was contended at the hearing, by the guardian

ad litem for the remaindermen, that a direction by

the testator to the trustees, nominated by him to

pay to the life tenants the income, issues, rents and

profits derivable from his estate, was not a devise
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of the leaseholds themselves, to the life tenants,

and that under the law it became the duty of the

trustees to protect the interests of the remainder-

men by disposing of the leaseholds while they were

valuable and reinvesting the proceeds in more per-

manent securities. It was urged that while in the

case of a devise of specific property for the life of

the devises, with remainder over to another, there

is no duty imposed by law upon the life tenant to

dispose of the property and reinvest the proceeds

for the benefit of the remaindermen, even though

it be of a depreciating nature, and its use by the

life tenant might consume it entirely to the utter

exclusion of the remaindermen, yet a different rule

applies where the property is not identified, but

described in general terms.

Many authorities were cited in support of this

contention, and there is much reason for the doc-

trine they announce. It was no doubt this canon

of testamentary construction which very properly

influenced the trustees in seeking the advice of the

Court, before proceeding further to execute the

trust imposed upon them by the will of James Gay.

There are two reasons why this principle cannot

prevail in the case now before the court. In the

first place it is conceded that the only estate of

which the testator died seized and possessed, were

the Ookala leasehold, the Mokuleia leasehold and

certain livestock and household furniture. A de-

vise, therefore of all his estate was equivalent to

a devise of each item eo nomine. If the will had

identified each portion of the property devised,
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there would be no basis for the contention of the

[32] remaindermen. What difference can it

make that the testator instead of doing this de-

vised his estate as a whole when it is conceded that

it consisted solely of the two leaseholds and cer-

tain personal property.

In the second place, it is clear from that part of

the will last above quoted, that so far as the Moku-
leia leasehold is concerned, it was the intention of

the testator to leave it discretionary with the trus-

tees, to sell it or continue to hold it for the benefit

of the life tenants. This discretion is unlimited

and it would be highly improper for the Court to

substitute its judgment for that of the trustees,

and thereby interfere with the will of the testator.

In the event their judgment should dictate a sale

of this leasehold, I am of the opinion, they would

be obliged to devote the proceeds to some form of

investment that would certainly enure to the bene-

fit of the remaindermen. If, on the other hand,

they continue to hold it, they should, in order to

comply with the testator's wishes, pay the income,

rents and profits to the life tenants.

[Seal] (Sgd.) JAS. J. BANKS,
Third Judge.

[Endorsements] : E. 225-2. 3/1. In the Circuit

Court of the First Judicial Circuit, Territory of

Hawaii. At Chambers—in Equity. H. Eocke and

H. M. von Holt Trustees Under the Will and of the

Estate of James Gray, Deceased, Complainants, vs.

Llewellyn Napela Gay, et al., Respondents. De-



40 Eva Gay et al

cision. 35/161. Filed at 11:15 o'clock A. M., April

2, 1920. B. N. Kahalepuna, Clerk. [33]

In the Circuit Court of the First Judicial Circuit,

Territory of Hawaii.

AT CHAMBERS—IN EQUITY.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LXEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON,
HELEN FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY,
EVA GAY, a Minor, BEATRICE GAY,
SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a

Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a

Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, a

Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Decree.

The complainants in the above-entitled cause,

acting as trustees under the will and of the estate

of James Gay deceased, having filed their petition

on the 7th day of August, 1919, asking that they be
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instructed by this Court as to their duties in the

execution of the trusts under the will of said de-

cedent and given all necessary instructions for

carrying the testator's intentions into execution,

after a determination by the Court of the issues

presented by the pleadings herein;

AND upon the filing of said petition, the Court

having duly appointed Harry Edmondson, Esq., as

guardian ad litem of the above-named respondents,

Eva Gay, Beatrice Gay, Sonny James Mokuleia Gay,

Michael Vanatta K.Gay, [34] Llewellyn Napela

Gay, Albert Gay Harris, Walter. William Holt,

Alice K. Holt and Ethel Prida Holt who are

minors; the remaining respondents (being life

tenants under said will), being represented by L. J.

Warren, Esq., of the firm of Smith, Warren &
Whitney; and the complainants, as trustees as

aforesaid, being represented by Wm. L. Stanley,

Esq., as counsel;

AND the said cause having regularly come on

for hearing before the undersigned judge of this

Court, and with all of the parties represented as

aforesaid and the said guardian ad litem acting

as his own counsel; and the Court having now
heard and fully considered all of the evidence ad-

duced by the respective parties upon the issues

involved herein; and having heard and considered

the arguments of counsel thereon; and the Court

having on the 2d day of April, 1920, rendered and

filed its decision upon the issues aforesaid, holding

that the intention of the testator expressed in said

will was to give to the trustees under said will full
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authority either to hold or to dispose of the said

Mokuleia leasehold and interests incidental thereto,

in their discretion, and that the exercise of such

discretion would [J- J- B.] should not be interfered

with by this Court;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREY OR-

DERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, as fol-

lows :

(1) That the said complainants, as trustees

under said will, be and they are hereby informed

and instructed that by the terms and legal effect o:^

said will they have been given and granted and

now have the right and authority, in their dis-

cretion, to determine whether or not any sale or

disposition of the said Mokuleia leasehold and

property shall at any time or extent be made;

(2) That so long as the trustees shall continue

to hold the property they are required by the

terms and [35] legal effect of said will to pay

the whole of the net rents, income, issues and profits

arising therefrom (including the interest from

the investment of the proceeds of sale of the

property sold and the rents derived from the sub-

leases of the land leased to the deceased by J. P.

Mendonca), as follows: one-half thereof to the

testator's sons, Llewellyn Napela Gay, Reginald

Eric Gay and Arthur Francis Gay, share and

share alike , for their support and maintenance, the

child or children of any of them who shall die to

take the share of the deceased parent by right of

representation, and the other one-half thereof to

the testator's now living daughters, Alice Mary K.



vs, H, Focke et al, ^6

Eichardson, Helen Fanny Gay and Frida Gay,

share and share alike (the other daughter, Ethel

Pauline N. Gay, having died without issue), for

their support, maintenance and any necessary

education, the child or children of any of them

who shall die to take the deceased parent's share

by right of representation.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, AD-
JUDGED AND DECREED that the costs incurred

in this proceeding be paid by said Trustees out of

the income of the trust estate.

Done in open court this 6 day of April, 1920.

[Seal] (Sgd.) JAS. J. BANKS,
Third Judge, First Circuit, Sitting at Chambers in

Equity.

Attest: (Sgd.) B. N. KAHALEPUNA,
Clerk.

[Endorsed] : E. 2252. 3/1. Circuit Court, First

Circuit, Territory of Hawaii, at Chambers, in

Equity. H. Focke and H. M. von Holt, Trustees

Under the Will and of the Estate of James Gay,

Deceased, Complainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela

Gay, et al.. Respondents, Decree. 35/161. Filed

at 2:15 o'clock P. M. April 6, 1920. (Sgd.) B. N.

Kahalepuna, Clerk. [36]
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In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

October Term, 1920.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,

ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY,

a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor,

SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a

Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA, GAY, a

Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor, ALICE
K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL FRIDA
HOLT, a Minor.

No. 1273.

Appeal from Circuit Judge First Circuit.

Hon J. J. BANKS, Judge.

Argued March 22, 23, 24, 1921.

Decided April 5, 1921.

COKE, C. J., KEMP and EDINGS, JJ.

Wills—Life Tenants and Remaindermen—Rule in

Howe vs. Earl of Dartmouth.

Where personal estate is given in terms amount-

ing to a general residuary bequest to be en-

joyed by different persons in succession it is

presumed to be the intention of the testator

that such of his personalty as is of a wasting
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or perishable nature is to be converted in such

way as to produce capital of a permanent

nature bearing interest unless upon the con-

struction of the will it appears that the testa-

tor had a different intention. [37]

Same—Same—Provisions Which Negative the

Presumption of Intention to Convert.

Directions by a testator to his trustees to carry

on a ranching business, so long as it can be

done so profitably, on a leasehold devised to

them in trust to be enjoyed by different per-

sons in succession, and investing them with

a discretionary power to sell the leasehold when

in their discretion they think that a sale would

by reinvestment of the money realized from

such sale be beneficial and inure to the bene-

fit of or increase the trust estate, are incon-

sistent with an intention that the leasehold

should be converted. [38]

Opinion of the Court by Kemp, J.

This proceeding was commenced in behalf of the

complainants as trustees under the will and of the

estate of James Gay, deceased, by a bill in equity

praying for instructions as to their duties as

trustees under said will. All parties now in being

who are interested in the trust estate were made

respondents. For convenience the minor respond-

ents above named will be referred to as remainder-

men and the other _, respondents as life tenants.

The remaindermen are represented by a guardian

ad litem, their interests being separate from and
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opposed to the interests of the life tenants. The
point at issue is whether certain Avasting assets

(leaseholds) should have been, or what remains of

them should be, preserved by amortization or other-

wise for the benefit of the remaindermen. The
remaindermen contend that the value of the lease-

holds and all additions and increase thereto con-

stitute the corpus of the estate and should be pre-

served for their benefit, while the life tenants con-

tend that it was the intention of the testator as

shown by the terms of his will that his trustees

should retain the corpus of the estate in the form

in which he left it, paying to them all the income

derived therefrom, including rents from subleases

even though by so doing the estate may entirely

waste away and leave nothing to the rlemaindermen

at the termination of the trust. A decree was en-

tered by the Circuit Judge adverse to the claims

of the remaindermen and in accordance with the

claims of the life tenants, from which decree the

remaindermen have appealed to this court.

The testator made his will dated May 25, 1893,

a copy of which is attached to the complaint. After

providing for the appointment of his wife, Mary
Ellen Gay, and his friend, Hermann Focke, to be

executor and executrix of his will and also trustee

of his estate under the will and directing them to

pay all his just debts and [39] funeral expenses,

the will provides:

^'I hereby give, devise and bequeath unto

Mary Ellen Gay and my friend Hermann Focke

all my estate real personal or mixed and where-
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soever situate in trust nevertheless for the

uses and purposes hereinafter set forth, that

is to say: to pay the rents income issues and

profits arising from and out of my said estate

to my wife Mary Ellen Gay for the term of

her natural life, and to be applied by her for

the support of herself and the support main-

tenance and education of my children born of

the body of my said wife Mary Ellen. And
from and after the death of my said wife I

direct my said trustee Hermann Focke and his

successor in said trust to pay the rents, income,

issues, and profits arising from and out of

said trust estate as follows: one-half thereof

for the support and maintenance of my sons

Llewellyn Napela Gay, Reginald Eric Gay and

Arthur Francis Gay share and share alike; and

as to the other part thereof to pay the same for

the support maintenance and education of my
daughters Alice Mary K. Gay, Ethel Pauline K
Gay, Helen Fanny Gay, and Frida Gay, share

and share alike.

''And from and after the death of all my
children born of the body of my said wife

Mary Ellen I direct my said trustee or his

successor to convey one-half of said trust es-

tate and all additions or increase thereto, unto

the children of my sons Llewellyn Napela Gay,

Reginald Eric Gay and Arthur Francis Gay

share and share alike and the child or children

of anv deceased child to take the parents share.

And as to the remaining portion of said trust
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and all additions or increase thereof, I direct

my said trustee or his successor in said trust to

convej^ the same unto the children of my said

daughters, Alice Mary Gay, Ethel Pauline N.

Gay, Helen Fanny Gay and Frida Gay, share

and share alike, and the child or children of

any deceased child to take the parents share.

'^And I direct my said trustee or his suc-

cessor in the event of the death of any of my
children born of the body of my said wife Mary
Ellen Gay to pay the share or portion of the in-

come belonging to such child to the heirs that

may survive such child dying."

Then follows a power of appointing new trustees

and the will continues

:

''It is my wish and I hereby direct that my
said trustees or their successors or successor,

shall manage, conduct and carry on the business

of ranching and stock raising at Mokuleia on

the Island of Oahu, so long as it can be done so

profitably, and without loss; and I hereby em-

power them or their successors or successor at

any time when in their discretion they think

that a sale of all the property at said Mokuleia,

would by reinvestment of the money realized

from such sale of said property be beneficial

and inure to the benefit of or increase the trust

estate created under this will, to sell and convey

said property at Mokuleia free and barred of

the trust created by this will.''

The testator died three days after making his will

leaving surviving him his wife and the three sons
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and four daughters named in the will, the youngest

of which was three or four years of age and [40]

the eldest about sixteen years of age. His wife

died in 1895 and his daughter Ethel died in 1902

unmarried. The will was duly admitted to probate

soon after the death of the testator. The complain-

ants are the present trustees of the estate devised

by the will. At his death the testator's estate, as

shown by the inventory filed in the probate proceed-

ing, consisted of the following property: (1) a

lease dated March 1, 1876, from the commissioner

of crown lands of the government of Hawaii to the

testator of the Ahupuaa of Humuula, Island of

Hawaii, comprising an area of about 1200 acres for

25 years from date, expiring March 1, 1901, but

prior to testator's death extended for a term of

seven years, or until March 1, 1908, at a nominal

rent or rent free (this lease was valued at the incep-

tion of the trust at $5000 and will be referred to

herein as the Ookala lease), (2) a lease dated May
27, 1884, from J. P. Mendonca to testator of about

2500 acres of land at Mokuelia, Waialua, Oahu, for

50 years from May 1, 1884, expiring May 1, 1934,

at an annual rent of $1250 and taxes (this lease

was valued at the inception of the trust at $7500

and will be referred to herein as the Mokuleia

lease)
; (3) cattle, horses, mules, chickens, farm im-

plements, household furniture, etc. (The horses

and mules were valued at the inception of the

trust at $2310 ; the value of the cattle, chickens, im-

plements and furniture does not so far as we are

able to ascertain appear in evidence)
; (4) cash in
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hand of agents $816.59. There was no real estate.

The estate at the inception of the trust had a value,

the complaint alleges, of $20,000' or thereabouts.

The Ookala lease was cultivated to sugar cane by

the Ookala Sugar Company under a sublease made

by the testator in his lifetime and afterwards re-

newed by the trustees for the full term of the head

lease. The sublease reserved a part of the sugar

grown on the lands as rent in kind from which the

trustees received for the years 1893-1908, both

[41] inclusive, a total of $34,854.34. There was no

rent paid by the trustees to the government, their

lessor. The testator ' resided on the Mokuleia lease

and there conducted a ranching business on the

greater part of the land and subleased the re-

mainder. At the time of his death he was receiving

from subleases of portions of the Mokuleia lease a

total annual rental of $2723.50. The trustees under

the power contained in the will carried on the tes-

tator's ranching business from the date of his death

until some time in the year 1906 when the livestock

and movable assets used in connection with the

ranching business were sold realizing $4065 net.

This sum has been invested by the trustees and the

investment held by them as corpus of the estate.

On December 9, 1898, a portion of the Mokuleia

lease containing an area of about 800 acres was

leased by the trustees to B. F. Dillingham for the

balance of the term of the head lease at a rental

of five per cent of the sugar or the proceeds thereof

grown thereon. The sublease to B. F. Dillingham

w^as assigned to the Waiaula Agricultural Company,
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and on July 2, 1902, the trustees subleased to the

Waialua Agricultural Company for the remainder

of the term of the head lease 65 acres more of the

Mokuleia lease at a like rental as in the lease to

B. F. Dillingham. On or about April 28, 1906,

when the ranch stock was sold the rest of the Moku-

leia lease was subleased by the trustees to others for

fixed annual rentals and for the remainder of the

term of the head lease. All of the Mokuleia lease is

now sublet. The approximate total gross rent from

the subleases of the Mokuleia lease beginning with the

year 1894 and including the year 1919 is shown to

have been $281,033.76. From this total the trustees

have paid to Mr. Mendonca,, their lessor, $1250

annually for 26 years, or $32,400, leaving $248,-

533.76, from which of course such expenses as court

€Osts, trustees' commissions, etc., the amount of

which is not shown, should be deducted in order to

ascertain the total net proceeds of said subleases.

The trustees paid out yearly all cash received by

them from every source except the sale of livestockj

and ranch movable assets, which netted $4065 asi

heretofore stated, first, to Mrs. Gay during her

lifetime and after her decease to testator's children.

The Ookala [42] lease, as already stated, has ex-

pired. There is nothing left of this part of the

estate to represent it, all of the net proceeds re-

ceived from the sale of sugar, the rent in kind,

having been paid by the trustees to the tenants for

life. If the trustees' method of administering the

trusts is continued the same fate awaits the Mokuleia

leasehold in 1934 unless all of testator's six children
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now living, the youngest of whom witl be about 45

and the eldest 57, die before that date. Evidence

adduced at the hearing establishes a present sale

value of the Mokuleia lease of $87,000 to $90,000,

a value which is decreasing about $5000 annually.

No evidence, other than the appraisement filed in

the probate proceeding, of the value of either of

said leaseholds at the date of the testator's death

is shown.

The trustees allege in their complaint that they

have ^^been advised by counsel that it is uncertain

and doubtful from the language used in the will of

the testator what the testator's intentions were as

to the respective rights in the estate of the life

tenants and remaindermen and that it is a matter

of uncertainty and doubt whether under the provi-

sions of said will and in view of the fact that the

principal assets of the trust estate, namely, the said

Mokuleia and Ookala leaseholds, were of a wasting

and diminishing nature the trustees of the said

estate were authorized in the past or will be author-

ized in the future to pay out all the net rents, in-

come, issues and profits of the said estate to the life

tenants without making provision out of said rents,

income, issues and profits for the preservation of

the corpiis of the said estate for the benefit of the

remaindermen, or whether there should not have

been retained in the past and should not in the

future be retained out of the said rents, income,

issues and profits such sums as may be necessary

for the purpose of restoring for the benefit of the

remaindermen the caj)ital or corpus of said estate
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to the value thereof at the death of the testator,''

and it is to procure the advice of the Court on the

question thus raised that this proceeding was in-

stituted.

As will appear from a consideration of the ques-

tion presented [43] our decision must turn prin-

cipally upon the question of whether or not the

rule laid down in Howe vs. Earl of Dartmouth, 7

Ves. 137 (1802), and ever since known by the name
of that case, is applicable to this case. There the

testator gave all his personal and landed estate to

one for life and to others afterwards. The will

contained no language which the Court could say

amounted to a specific bequest of such personal

estate as was the testator's at the time of his death.

Some of the estate at the time of the testator's

death was invested in wasting assets (long and short

annuities) and some in unauthorized securities

(bank stock). Held, that these wasting assets are

to be converted in such way as to produce capital,

bearing interest.

The rule as understood and applied by the En-

glish courts has been more clearly stated in later

cases, a few of which we will now notice.

In McDonald vs. Irvine, 8 L. R. (Ch. Div.) 101,

at p. 1'21, Lord Justice Thesiger made a short and

very lucid statement of the rule as follows: ^^The

rule itself is a simple one, founded upon the pre-

sumption, that where personal estate is given in

terms amounting to a general residuary bequest,

to be enjoyed by persons in succession, such persons

are to enjoy the same thing in succession, and ef-
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fectuating the presumed intention of the testator

by the conversion into investments approved by
the court of so much of the personalty as is at the

death of the testator of a wasting, or perishable, or

insecure nature, and also of reversionary inter-

ests." In Lichfield vs. Baker, 2 Beav. 481, 483 (48

Eng. Eep. (Eepr.) 1267), is to be found another

very clear statement and application of the rule

in the following language: ^^The only point on

which I need call on the plaintiffs ' counsel to reply,

is on the extent of relief now to be granted. As to

the other question, I take this [44] to be the

rule of the Court, that when a testator has given

an estate, or the residue of an estate, to persons

in succession, as to one for life, with remainder to

another person, the Court presuming that the tes-

tator intended that the remainderman should have

something, will so deal with the property, if it be a

property that is wearing out and may terminate

during the life estate, as to secure the accomplish-

ment of that intention, and give the remainderman

something ; for that purpose it will convert the per-

ishable into a permanent property, and give the

income which arises from it to the persons entitled

for life in succession, and preserve the capital for

the person entitled in remainder. That is the rule
;

and the court only acts upon the general intention

of the testator, that something should be given to

the person who is the donee in remainder; but if,

ux)on the construction of the will, it appears the

testator had another intention, that is to say, an

intention to give to one or more persons who are
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to take for lives or during a succession of lives, the

enjoyment of the property in the state he left it at

the time of his death, then the court will carry that

intention into effect; and every one of the cases

which have been cited, and every case which can

arise, will turn upon this question of construction,

whether you can find upon the face of the will an

intention that the legatee for life shall enjoy the

property in the way in which it stood at the testa-

tor's death, even to the extent of defeating the

testator's intention to bequeath something to the

remainderman. I believe that in all the cases which

have been cited in opposition to the conversion,

there have been words clearly indicating, from the

testator's description of the property or some other

circumstance, that the testator intended the donee

to enjoy it for life, in the same way as it stood at

his death." In Pickering vs. Pickering, 4 My. &
Cr. 289, 41 Eng. Eep. (Repr.) 113, at 116 it is said:

^^AU that Howe vs. Lord of Dartmouth (7 Ves.

137) decided—and [45] that was not the first

decision to the same effect—is that, where the resi-

due or bulk of the property is left en masse, and it

is given to several persons in succession as tenants

for life and remaindermen, it is the duty of the

Court to carry into effect the apparent intention

of the testator. How is the apparent intention to

be ascertained if the testator has given no particular

directions ? If, although he has given no directions

at all, yet he has carved out parts of the property

to be enjoyed in strict settlement by certain per-

sons, it is evident that the property must be put in
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such a state as will allow of its being so enjoyed.

This cannot be, unless it is taken out of a temporary

fund and put into a permanent fund. But that is

merely an inference from the mode in which the

property is to be enjoyed if no direction is given

as to how the property is to be managed. It isi

equally clear that, if a person gives certain prop-

erty specifically to one person for life, with re-

mainder over afterwards, then, although there is a

danger that one object of his bounty will be de-

feated by the tenancy for life lasting as long as the

property endures, yet there is a manifestation of

intention which the court cannot overlook."

It is with the principle announced in the above

cases in mind that the will is to be examined, from

which we gather that it is after all a question of

intention and the rule in Howe vs. Earl of Dart-

mouth is founded on what is presumed to be the

intention of the testator where an estate is given to

one for life and afterwards to others. The testa-

tor's presumable intention is that there shall be

equality of enjoyment where there are no directions

as to how the estate shall be enjoyed. It is the in-

tention presumed by law in the absence of any con-

trary intention expressed by the testator, and being

only a presumption of intention, it must give way

to any intention expressed by the testator. When
(mce you have arrived at the intention of the testa-

tor you must give effect to it notwithstanding [46]

the rule in Howe vs. Earl of Dartmouth. Any

other conclusion would be in conflict with our own

decisions. Mercer vs. Kirtpatrick, 22 Haw. 644;
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Fitchie vs. Brown, 18 Haw. 52; Rooke vs. Queen's

Hospital, 12, Haw. 375.

Counsel for the life tenants argue that this will

is taken out of the rule in Howe vs. Earl of Dart-

mouth by provisions in it which they say clearly

show that it was testator's intention that his estate

should be held by the trustees in the state in which

he left it, paying the rents, income, issues and

profits arising from and out of it to them, while

the guardian ad litem for the remaindermen argues

that there is nothing in the will which distinguishes

it from the will in that case. From the fact that

the will provides for rents to be paid to the life

tenants and the further fact that the testator had

no real estate the life tenants argued that the word

^'rents'' could apply only to leaseholds and that the

obligation to convert is thereby negatived. They

cite Goodenough vs. Tremamondo, 2 Beav. 512 (48

Eng. Eep. (Repr.) 1280). There the will, which

was not executed so as to pass real estate, after

bequeathing specific legacies, provides: ^^And as to

all the rest, residue and remainder of my estate and

effects whatsoever and wheresoever, I give, devise

and bequeath the same unto Anthony Angelo and

Charles John Lawson, their executors, administra-

tors, and assigns, in trust to permit the rents, is-

sues, profits, interest, and annual proceeds thereof

to be received and taken by my said son Richard

Collier Andree, for and during the term of his

natural life, for his own use and benefit; and from

and after his decease, upon trust for Ann and

Sophia, the two daughters of my said son Richard
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Collier Andree, when they shall attain the age of

twenty-one years, equall}^ to be divided between them,

share and share like. And I empower my said trus-

tees and executors, after the death of my said son

Eichard Collier Andree, to apply the rents, interest,

profits, and annual proceeds of my said [47]

residuary estate and effects, for and towards the

maintenance and education of the said Ann and

Sophia Andree, until their respective shares shall

become vested." Part of the estate consisted of a

leasehold. The master of the rolls said that he

could not declare this to be a case of conversion

without striking out altogether the word ^^ rents"

w^hich was twice repeated in the will and it appeared

that there was no other property belonging to the

testator except the leaseholds to which the term

^^ rents" was applicable. Other cases are cited in

support of this contention but this one seems to be

the most nearly in point of any.

The case at bar is distinguished from Goodenough

vs. Tremamondo primarily by the fact that the

will in that case was not executed so as to pass real

estate, while the will in the case at bar was not so

restricted although the testator owned no real es-

tate at the time of his death. Under these circum-

stances we cannot say that the word ** rents" refers

to anything more than the real estate which the

testator might have acquired between the making of

his will and his death and which would have passed'

by his will in the form he made it had he acquired

any.
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Our conclusion as to the effect of the use of the

word '^rents'' is supported by the decision in Pickup

vs. Atkinson, 4 Hare, 624 (67 Eng. Rep. (Repr.)

797), where, after a specific gift of certain lease-

hold houses to the testator's wife for life with re-

mainder over to his nephew, the testator bequeathed

the ^^ rents and profits, dividends and interest" of

all the residue of his property to his wife for her

life with gift over of the whole of the residue after

her decease to other persons, and there was no free-

hold. The vice-chancellor, in discussing the ques-

tion, said: ^^If the use of the word ^rents' in one

case, with reference to leaseholds not specifically be-

queathed, is to be taken as sufficient evidence that

the tenant for life of the residue was intended to

enjoy the leaseholds [48] in specie, I do not know

how to stop short of the conclusion that any other

word by which income may be described is to have

the same effect with reference to the property

in respect to which it is paid. The use of the word

^dividends,' for example, in another case, ought to

be admitted as sufficient evidence that every por-

tion of the residue, though not specifically be-

queathed, the annual profits of which are returned

under the name of dividends, was also intended to

be enjoyed in its existing state, which would in-

clude every species of property yielding dividends

from consols, which the Court considers a perma-

nent fund, down to the lowest mercantile security;

and the same argument in strictness would apply

to the word interest' where the property yielded

income in the form of interest. It appears to me
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impossible to admit that conclusion. I think the

correct reasoning upon the words ^ rents and profits,

dividends and interest' of a general residue, con-

sidered alone, must be analogous to that which is

applied to the residue itself. The mere enumera-

tion of particulars in the latter case does not give

a specific character to the bequest, because the

whole clause is in effect a mere residuary bequest.

I think the same observation applies to a case like

this; the enumeration of particulars of income be-

ing nothing more than a gift of the income of the

residue, which means income only. This conclu-

sion appears to me to be put beyond dispute when

it is considered that the words 'rents, profits, divi-

dends and interest' in this case means rents, profits,

dividends and interest, not of the property the tes-

tator then had, but of such property, real, personal

or mixed, as he might happen to have at the time

of his death. ^ ^ ^ The only two cases which

bear any analogy to the present are Pickering vs.

Pickering and Goodenough vs. Tremamondo (2

Beav. 512). In Pickering vs. Pickering the word
* rents' occurred; but it does not appear to me that

the word was relied upon as alone constituting

[49] a ground for preserving the property in

specie. There are other and very elaborate rea-

sons given for that conclusion. In Goodenough vs.

Tremamondo the word 'rents' occurred twice; and

Lord Langdale appears to have thought that the

use of it the second time was conclusive evidence

that the testator treated his property as uncon-

verted when the estate in remainder fell into pos-
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session, and therefore that the legacy was specific

in the direct sense of that term. And he says, fur-

ther, there was no other property belonging to the

testator, except the leaseholds, to which the term

^rents' was applicable, which shows that he con-

sidered the bequest as specific in the strict sense

of that term. In this case any property, freehold

or leasehold, to which the testator might have been

entitled at his death would satisfy the gift; and

that, in my opinion, shows that the testator could

not have had any particular object in his mind to

which the direction was applicable but that he re-

ferred to the income of his property generally.'*

See also Chambers vs. Chambers, 15 Sim. 183 (60'

Eng. Rep. (Repr.) 587) ; Morgan vs. Morgan, 14

Beav., 72 (51 Eng. Rep. (Repr.) 214); Mills vs.

Mills, 7 Sim. 501 (58 Eng. Rep. (Repr.) 929);

Boardman vs. Mansfield, 79 Conn. 634 {m Atl. 169,

12 L. R. A. (N. S.) 793-6).

But the life tenants do not rely alone or princi-

pally upon the use of the word ^'rents'' to support

their contention. Their main argument is based

upon that portion of the will which directs the

trustee to carry on the business of ranching at

Mokuleia so long as it can be done profitably and

without loss and invests them with a discretionary

power to sell their property at Mokuleia. As ap-

plied to the Mokuleia lease we think their reasoning

is sound. If the conversion was required at all it

must take place as soon after testator's death as

may be. The direction to the trustees to ^^manage,

conduct and carry on the business of ranching and
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stock raising at [50] Mokuleia'' and the discre^

tion with which the testator invested the trustees

in the matter of selling 'Hhe property at said

Mokuleia" are both inconsistent with an intention

that the property was to be converted, for if they

had a right to retain the property until "hi their

discretion they think that a sale of all the prop-

erty at Mokuleia would by reinvestment of the

money realized from such sale of such property

be benefited and inure to the benefit of or increase

the trust estate created under the will" they may
retain it for years, or, indeed, may never convert

it at all, and if so they are only exercising the dis-

cretion given to them by the will. In re Bates,

L. R. 1907 (1 Ch.) 22; Alcock vs. Sloper, 2 Myl.

& K. 699 (39 Eng. Rep. (Repr.) 1111).

Neither do we see any merit in the contention

of the remaindermen that since the trustees ceased

to carry on the ranching business at Mokuleia and

subleased the lands they in effect sold the head

lease to be paid for in instalments and that the

amounts received for the sublease are corpus instead

of income. If, as we have concluded, the trustees

were authorized under the terms of the will to

retain the head lease whatever sums they received

for its use were income and the life tenants entitled

to receive it.

But what we have said as to the effect of the

above provisions upon the right of the trustees to

retain the Mokuleia lease has no application to the

Ookala lease and there is no other language in the

will which in our opinion has any reference to the
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manner in which the Ookala lease was to be en-

joyed. The Circuit Judge apparently considered

that the question presented related entirely to the

management of the estate in the future and dis-

missed the Ookala lease with the statement that it

had already expired. Since the trustees ask for

instructions as to their duties in the execution of

the trust and that all proper accounts may be taken

and all necessary directions given for carrying the

testator's intention into [51] execution we think

the whole matter should be settled in this proceed-

ing. The restoration of the corpus of the estate

represented by the Ookala lease is we think as

much involved as if the case had been commenced

by the remaindermen on a bill for an accounting.

There are not, however, before us sufficient facts

to enable us to enter a decree.

We think, therefore, that the cause should be

remanded with instructions to the Circuit Judge

to modify the decree appealed from so as to require

of the trustees an accounting in accordance with

the views herein expressed unless within five days

from the filing of this opinion the parties can and

do agree upon sufficient facts to enable us to enter

•a proper decree. Unless such an agreement is filed

within the time above stated an order will be en-

tered remanding the cause as above stated.
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W. L. STANLEY filed a brief for the trustees but

did not argue.

H. EDMONDSON (HENRY HOLMES with him

on the brief), for the minor respondents.

L. J. WARREN (W. O. SMITH and MOTT-
SMITH & LINDSAY with him on the brief),

for the life tenants.

JAMES L. COKE.
S. B. KEMP.
W. S. EDINGS.

[Endorsed] : No. 1273. Supreme Court, Ter-

ritory of Hawaii. October Term, 1920. H. Pocke

and H. M. von Holt, Trustees Under the Will and

of the Estate of James Gay, Deceased, vs. Llewellyn

Napela Gay, et al. Opinion. Filed April 5, 1921,

at 3:50 P. M. J. A. Thompson, Clerk. [52]

In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii-

October Term, 1920.

H. POCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,

ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY,

a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor,

SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a Minor,

MICHAEL VANNATTA K. GAY, a Minor,

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, a Minor, AL-
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BERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor, WALTER
WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor, Alice K. HOLT,
a Minor, and ETHEL FRIDA HOLT, a

Minor.

No. 1273.

PETITION FOR REHEARING.

Filed April 16, 1921. Decided May 7, 1921.

COKE, C. J., KEMP, J., and Circuit Judge

FRANKLIN in Place of EDINGS, J., Absent.

Opinion of Court on Petition for Rehearing.

PER CURIAM: The minor respondents in the

above-entitled cause, referred to in our opinion filed

April 5, 1921, as remaindermen, have filed a peti-

tion for a rehearing asking that we instruct the

trustees as to the method that should be followed

in arriving at the corpus or capital value of the

Ookala leasehold and (or) that we enter a decree

that the corpus or capital value thereof was $34,-

854.34. They assert that the record contains suffi-

cient facts to enable us to enter a decree. With

this contention we do not agree. But even if the

facts were all before us it would be discretionary

with us as to whether we would enter a decree [53]

* or remand the cause to the circuit judge. (Hind

vs. Wilder's S. S. Co., 13 Haw. 174, 176.) We
thitik it only fair to all parties that the cause be

remanded to the Circuit Judge where a full hearing

can be had and the amount for which the trustees

must account be properly ascertained. Neither do

we think that it would be proper for us at this

time to undertake to issue instructions as to the
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method to be followed in arriving at the value of

the Ookala leasehold there being nothing in the

record to indicate that the Circuit Judge is in need

of such instructions.

For the reasons set forth the petition for re-

hearing is denied and in compliance with the state-

ment in our opinion of April 5 ^^ unless within five

days from the filing of this opinion the parties

can and do agree upon sufficient facts to enable us

to enter a proper decree ^ * * an order will

be entered remanding the cause" the cause is re-

manded to the Circuit Judge for further proceed-

ings not inconsistent with that opinion.

H. HOLMES and H. EDMONDSON, for the peti-

tion.

By the Court,

J. A. THOMPSON,
Clerk.

[Endorsed] : No. 1273. Supreme Court, Ter-

ritory of Hawaii. October Term, 1920. H. Focke

et al.. Trustees Under the Will and of the

Estate of James Gray, Deceased, vs. Llewellyn

Napela Gay, et al. Decision on Petition for Re-

hearing. Filed May 7, 1921, at 9:35 A. M. J. A.

Thompson, Clerk, [54]
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In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

APPEAL FROM CIRCUIT JUDGE FIRST
CIRCUIT.

No. 1273.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under
the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY et al.,

Respondents.

Notice of Decision on Appeal.

To the Honorable JAS. J. BANKS, Third Judge of

the Circuit Court of the First Circuit, Territory

of Hawaii:

Please take notice that in the above-entitled cause

the Supreme Court has filed the following decision

on appeal:

^^DECISION ON APPEAL.
^^In the above-entitled cause, pursuant to the

opinion of the above-entitled court filed herein on

the 5th day of April, 1921, and no agreement hav-

ing been filed by the parties upon which a proper

decree may be entered in this Court, the said cause

is hereby remanded to the Circuit Judge of the

court below with instructions to modify the decree

appealed from so as to require of the trustees an

accounting in accordance with the views expressed

in said opinion.
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^'Datecl, Honolulu, T. H., May 27, 1921.

^^By the Court:

[Seal] ^^J. A. THOMPSON,
^^ Clerk, Supreme Court."

Dated, Honolulu, T. H., May 27, 1921.

J. A. THOMPSON,
Clerk, Supreme Court.

SMITH, WARREN & STANLEY,
Attorneys at Law,

Honolulu, Hawaii.

[Endorsed].: No. 1273. Supreme Court, Ter-

ritory of Hawaii. H. Pocke and H. M. von Holt,

Trustees Under the Will and of the Estate of

James Gay, Deceased, Complainants, vs. Llewellyn

Napela Gay, et al. Notice of Decision on Appeal.

Filed May 27, 1921, at 4:00 P. M. J. A. Thompson,

Clerk. Smith, Warren & Stanley, Attorneys,

Honolulu, T. H. [55]

In the Circuit Court of the First Judicial Circuit,

•Territory of Hawaii.

AT CHAMBERS—IN PROBATE.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE, et al.. Trustees Under the Will and

of the Estate of JAMES GAY, Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, et al..

Respondents.
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Decision.

On the appeal heretofore taken in this case it

has been determined by the Supreme Court that

the ^^Ookala lease" which belonged to the testator's

estate should upon the testator's death have been

converted by the trustees into cash and the pro-

<ieeds held as part of the corpus of the estate, in-

stead of having been held, as was the Mokuleia

lease, and all of the rents therefrom paid as in-

come to the life tenants; and that an accounting

should now be taken to determine what amount

should be restored as the corpus represented by the

Ookala lease in order that as between the life ten-

ants and the remaindermen the latter shall have that

amount restored and held for them as capital.

The parties having now presented evidence and ar-

gument upon the issues involved, I am of the opinion

that the figure of $5,000, which was placed in the

inventory of the estate shortly after the testator's

death, as the ^^ value" of the Ookala lease, cannot

equitably be taken as a proper basis for any deci-

sion in this case. That this lease might not have

brought much more than that sum had it then been

sold may be [56] conceded, but the fact is that

it was not sold, and that a total net sum of $34,-

329.24 was actually realized by the trustees out of

this property. It is the sum of $34,329.24 which

was actually so received by the trustees from this

lease v^hich must now be apportioned into sums

representing income for the life tenants and capi-

tal for the remaindermen.
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I am of the opinion that the proper method of

determining what part of this sum of $34,329.24

is income and what part is capital would be to as-

sume that each sum, as received by the trustees,

should have been considered as property belonging

to the estate of which part should have been in-

vested as capital and part distributed as income;

and that the portion constituting capital should be

ascertained by finding what sum if received at the

death of the testator, would amount with interest

at six per cent, and making annual rests, to the

whole sum actually received. Adopting this

method I find that $20,668.35 would be that sum,

,and was the true actuarial value of the Ookala

lease in 1893.

The life tenants offered evidence showing that

when Mr. Gay made his will on May 25, 1893y

he was in a very low and dying condition and

therefore sent his physician for his lawyer to

come and prepare this will in place of one al-

ready existing; the purpose being to show that

the will here in question was made by him

with reference only to the estate which he then

already had and was disposing of, and, there-

fore, that in using the word ^'rents'' in the

clause ^^ rents, income, issues and profits arising

from and out of said trust estate,'' when he did not

then own any real estate, he meant *^ rents" from

both Ookala and Mokuleia leases rather than to

rents from any real estate he might possibly yet

acquire before his death. This [57] was ob^

jected to by the guardian ad litem for the re-
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maindermen upon the ground that it was
outside the scope of the issues left to be de-

termined by this Court under the decision of the

Supreme Court, and that it was incompetent,

irrelevant and immaterial, and that it would tend

to change the terms of the will by oral evidence.

But as this Court did not on the previous hearing

either consider or make any finding as to the

effect of the word ^^ rents" as used in the will, and

the decision of the Supreme Court on this point

rested upon a record in which that issue was not

fully gone into, I think the life tenants are en-

titled to have the fact of the testator's dying con-

dition shown by the record as being one of the facts

and circumstances surrounding the execution of

the will. I hold, however, that it would not affect

the question of the duty of the trustees to have

converted the Ookala lease as has now been directed

by the Supreme Court.

A decree will therefore be entered requiring the

trustees to set apart out of the accumulated income

now in their hands the sum of twenty thousand six

hundred sixty-eight and 35/100 Dollars ($20,668.35)

as capital to which the remaindermen will be en-

titled on the termination of the trust, and which

sum will in the meantime be invested to pay the

income of the life tenants.

! Dated, Honolulu, T. H., August 1, 1921.

[Seal] JAS. J. BANKS,
Third Judge First Circuit Court.

[Endorsed]: Filed at 2:10 o'clock P. M. August

1, 1921. B. N. Kahalepuna, Clerk. [58]
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In the Circuit Court of the First Judicial Circuit,

Territory of Hawaii.

AT CHAMBERS—IN EQUITY.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE et al., Trustees Under the Will and of

the Estate of JAMES OAY, Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, et al..

Respondents.

Decree.

Pursuant to the decision filed herein on this

first day of August, 1921, and the separate order

made and filed this day respecting the allowance

and payment of counsel fees and disbursements in

the above-entitled cause,

—

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DE-
CREED that H. Focke and H. M. von Holt, as

trustees under the will and of the estate of James

Gay, deceased, be and they are hereby instructed

and directed to set apart out of the income of the

trust estate the sum of Twenty Thousand and Six

Hundred Sixty-eight and 35/100 Dollars ($20,-

668.35) as capital to which the remaindermen will

be entitled on the termination of the trust, less the

amounts which the trustees are required to pay

therefrom on account of counsel fees and disburse-

ments under the separate order in that behalf this

day filed.
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Dated, Honolulu, T. H., August 1, 1921.

[Seal] JAS. J. BANKS,
Third Judge, First Circuit Court.

[Endorsed]: Filed at 2:10 o'clock P. M. August

1, 1921. B. N. Kahalepuna, Clerk. [59]

In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

October Term, 1921.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

vs.

DLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, et al.

No. 1348.

Appeals From Circuit Judge First Circuit.

Hon J, J. BANKS, Judge.

Argued January 6, 1922.

Decided February 28, 1922.

COKE, C. J., KEMP and EDINGS, J. J.

Trusts—Wasting Asset—Value Ascertained.

Whenever a leasehold which should have been

converted into a permanent investment at the

inception of the trust is held by the trustees

until the expiration of the lease and it after-

wards becomes necessary to ascertain its value

it is proper to consider what it produced in

order to ascertain its value at the time it

should have been converted.
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Appeal and Error—Final Decree—Effect of Appeal

from.

A general appeal from a final decree in equity

brings up for review all interlocutory orders,

not appealable as of right, which deal with the

issues in the case.

Same—Same—Same.

An appealable order made in a proceeding grow-

ing out of the suit but foreiin to the subject

matter of it is not brought up for review by a

general appeal from the main decree. [60]

Opinion of the Court by Kemp, J.

The complainants as trustees under the will and

of the estate of James Gay, deceased, filed a bill

in equity for instructions as to their duties under

the will. From the decree entered by the Circuit

Judge the minor respondents, remaindermen,

through their guardian ad litem prosecuted an

appeal to this court. Our opinion on that appeal

(26 Haw. 1) is referred to for the history of the

case. It is sufficient to say here that the cause was

remanded with instructions to the Circuit Judge

to modify the decree appealed from so as to require

the trustees to set aside as capital the value of the

Ookala leasehold. When the matter again came

before the Circuit Judge on the remand he heard

evidence as to the rentals produced by the Ookala

leasehold from the death of the testator to the ex-

piration of the lease and from the evidence and

calculations which he had an actuary make found

its value to be $20,668.35. A decree was accord-
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ingly entered requiring the trustees to set aside

that amount as capital or corpus of the estate. In

order to arrive at that value each installment of

rent received by the trustees from said leasehold

was considered to be part income and part capital.

To determine what portion of each installment of

rent constituted capital calculations were made by

the actuary to ascertain what sum put out at six

per cent interest with annual rests on the date of

testator's death would amount to each installment

actually received at the time it was received. Each

installment was figured separately and the sum of

the amounts thus ascertained equals the value

found by the Circuit Judge. The remaindermen

being dissatisfied with the decree in this respect

have again appealed to this court.

Appellants complain because the Circuit Judge

entered a new decree instead of modifying the for-

mer decree. This constitutes at most an imma-

terial departure from the instructions contained

[61] in the order remanding the cause and is not

prejudical to the rights of the appellants. The

Circuit Judge was compelled to hear evidence in

order to comply with the order of this Court and

having done so it was not improper for him to

enter such decree as the evidence warranted.

On the question of the correctness of the decree

it is argued that the following four courses were

open to the trustees at the inception of the trust:

(1) They could have valued the Ookala leasehold

at the inception of the trust and paid to the ten-

ants for life six per cent interest on such value;
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(2) they could have sold the leasehold, invested the

proceeds and given the income to the life tenants;

(3) they could have invested the rents as received

and paid the income to the life tenants, and (4)

they might (by analogy to a direct gift of money

for life) have paid the rents as received to the

tenants for life upon receiving reasonable security

to preserve the fund for the remaindermen. It is

further argued that what the trustees did was to

adopt the fourth course except that they did not

exact security of the life tenants for the preserva-

tion of the fund.

We are not able to concede either that the trus-

tees had the four courses open to them or that they

have adopted the fourth course. The only course

which the trustees had an absolute right to pur-

sue was to promptly convert the wasting assets

into an authorized permanent investment and pay

the income derived therefrom, whatever it might

be, to the life tenants and preserve the capital

amount for the remaindermen. Not having pur-

sued this course their error must now be corrected

by requiring them to set aside as capital or corpus

^of the estate a sum equal to the one which they

should have had for that purpose at the time. At

the time of the testator's death the value of the

Ookala leasehold was uncertain because the

amount it would produce was uncertain, but the

information now [62] makes its true value as of

,that date at least theoretically ascertainable, and

the calculations which the Circuit Judge had the
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actuary make based on the receipts from the lease-

hold showed that value.

, In Kinmouth vs. Brigham, 5 Allen 270, 279,

.where a portion af the trust estate consisted of an

investment by a special partner in a trading part-

nership, the Court after stating that such invest-

;ment was one which the Court could not sanction

^aid: ^^It is obviously difficult in this case to de-

termine what was the value of the investment at

,the testator's decease by any other mode than a

computation based upon the whole product ulti-

mately realized from it. * * * We think, there-

fore, that upon a just construction of the will equity

will require that the profits received by the execu-

tors from the special partnership should not be re-

garded or treated exclusively as income but that

they be treated when received from time to time

as property belonging to the estate, a part of which

4s to be invested as capital and a part distributed

as income; which parts are to be ascertained by

finding what sum if received at the death of the

testator would amount, with interest at six per

cent and making annual rests, to the sum actually

received, at the time it was received; and that the

sum so found should be invested as principal and

the remainder distributed as income." The Cir-

cuit Judge evidently had this case before him and

was largely influenced by it in adopting the

method used to ascertain the capital value of the

Ookala leasehold.

In this case, as in the Kinmouth case, it is obvi-

ously difficult to determine what was the value of
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the investment at the testator's death by any

other mode than a computation based upon the

whole product ultimately realized from it. We
therefore hold that the Circuit Judge coiomitted no

error in thus determining the value of said lease-

hold. But we are not to be understood as holding

that in every such case six per cent should be

taken as the correct [63] rate of interest. When-
ever interest is to be allowed for the failure to pay

money when it is due the law knows no other rate

than the one established by law, but here we are

to ascertain between the tenants for life and the

remaindermen what part of the gross sum now in

hand shall be treated as capital and what part as in-

come, and when we are called upon to find out what

sum at a particular date if invested by the trustees

would have been sufficient to produce with its in-

come the gross sum now on hand we must look to the

actual income that can be obtained from authorized

investments and not to the rate of interest estab-

lished by law. (Edwards vs. Edwards, 183 Mass.

581, 67 N. E. 658; Lawrence vs. Littlefield, 215 N. Y.

561, 109 N. E. 611 ; Purniss vs. Cruickshank, 130 N.

E. (N. Y.) 625.) No point is made of the rate of

interest used in the computations in this case, the

objection being to the method used rather than to

the details of applying the method.

Shortly after the case was remanded to the Cir-

cuit Court Mr. Edmondson, guardian ad litem for

the minor respondents, filed a motion for the al-

lowance to him of $2000 for his services in the
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Supreme Court on the former appeal and for the

further sum of $1000 for the services of counsel

employed by him to assist him on that appeal. At

the conclusion of the hearing as to the value of the

leasehold in question evidence was heard as to the

nature, extent and value of the services of the

guardian ad litem after which the Circuit Judge

simultaneously with the entry of the decree en-

tered a separate order allowing him a fee of $1000

^^for his services rendered in this case in the Su-

preme Court to date, and a further sum of $1000

for services of counsel employed by the said''

guardian ad litem" * ^ * which total sum was

directed to be apportioned between and paid

forthwith out of the capital and income respec-

tively in the proportions that $20,668.35 and $13,-

060.89, respectively, bear to the sum of $34,329.34.''

Also upon the oral [64] application of counsel

for the trustees made at the time of the entry of

the order it was further ordered that the sum of

$750 be paid to him for his services as counsel for

the trustees on the appeal and to date, which sum
was similarly apportioned between and to be paid

out of the capital and income. From this order Mr.

Edmondson has appealed and urges that the $1000

fee allowed him is inadequate.

The evidence as to the value of the services of

the guardian ad litem is conflicting. The Circuit

Judge in order to determine what was a reasonable

^fee for the guardian ad litem necessarily acquainted

himself with the nature and extent of the services

Tendered. If he desired more definite information
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than was acquired during the progress of the trial

he was then at liberty to hear evidence as to the

nature and extent of the services rendered for

which the fee was sought. He was also at liberty)

to take the judgment of professional men as to

the value of such services but such evidence is not

necessarily controlling even when it is not conflict-

ing. When the Circuit Judge had familiarized

himself by either method with the nature and ex-

tent of the services and the other circumstances

generally it became his duty in the exercise of a

sound discretion to fix the amount of the fee to

be allowed (Guardianship of Humeku, 15 Haw.

394; Magoon vs. Fitch, 16 Haw. 13), and unless it

appears that he has abused that discretion his ac-'

tion in fixing the amount of the fee will not be

disturbed on appeal. In this case the guardian

ad litem had already been allowed a fee of $100Q

for his services in the first trial in the Circuit Court.

For prosecuting the appeal from the decision of the

Circuit Judge in that trial he has now been allowed

$1000 for counsel which he employed to assist him

and $1000 for his own services on appeal and the

second hearing in the Circuit Court. Considering

the benefits resulting from the guardian ad litem's

services and all the surrounding [65] circum-

stances we regard the amount allowed by the Cir-

cuit Judge as very liberal. It cannot be said there-

fore that the Circuit Judge abused the discretion

reposed in him.

It is also argued that that portion of the order

apportioning these counsel fees between capital
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and income is erroneous. The first question which

presents itself is one which we have raised and

called upon counsel to discuss, viz., whether or

not the issue is raised by either of the appeals.

The appeal of Mr. Edmondson, although a general

appeal from the order in question, does not raise

the issue for he has not such an interest in the

subject matter as entitles him to raise it. In factj

it is not contended that the issue is raised by his

appeal. It is contended, however, in behalf of

the remaindermen that their appeal from the de-

cree does raise the issue of the correctness of the

apportionment although contained in an order en-

tirely separate from the decree from which they

have appealed. It is well settled that an appeal

from a final decree in equity brings up for review^

all interlocutory orders, not appealable directly

as of right, which deal with issues in the case.

(Lee Chu vs. Noar, 14 Haw. 648; Scott vs. Stuart,

22 Haw. 641.) Whether such an appeal would

bring up for review an intermediate order directly

appealable, because final in its nature, which set-

tles some issue in the case was not decided by either

of the cases cited, nor is it necessarv for us to decide

it here. But the case of Scott vs. Stuart does de-

cide that an appealable order made in a proceeding

jgrowing out of the suit but foreign to the subject

matter of the suit would not be up for review upon

an appeal from the decree and that an order or

decree directing the payment of money other than

the payment into court for further disposition is

final in its nature and appealable. There the Court
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was discussing an order entered in a partition pro-

ceeding but made In response to a motion of an

attorney, who Jiad [66] theretofore heen ap-^

pointed master in chancery in said partition pro-

ceeding, for the allowance to him of a fee for ser-

vices which he had rendered in obedience to an

order of the Circuit Judge in resisting an applica-

tion of one of the parties to said partition pro-

ceeding for a writ of prohibition against himself

and the Circuit Judge by which said party sought

to prevent further action under said order ap-

pointing him master. In response to said motion

the Circuit Judge fixed his fee and ordered it paid,

hy the clerk out of funds on deposit in court in

said partition proceeding. In discussing that or-

der this Court said: ^^It should be pointed out^

however, that that order was an appealable one,,

and as it was made in a proceeding independent

of the suit for partition and foreign to the sub-

ject matter of that suit, though growing out of it,

the order would not, upon final decree, be up for

reconsideration or review." Here the order in

question was made in the case on trial but in

response to the motions of c»ounsel for the trustees

and the remaindermen to have their fees for ser-

vices in a former appeal allowed and would seem

to be ruled by the holding in Scott vs. Stuart, un-

less there are other facts which distinguish it.

The only fact which has a tendency to distinguish

this order from that is a recital in the decree fol-

lowing the portion ordering the trustees to set

aside as capital the value of the Oookala leasehold
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to the effect that the remaindermen will be entitled

to this sum on the termination of the trust ''less

the amount which the trustees are required to pay

therefrom on account of counsel fees and disburse-

ments under the separate order in that behalf this

4ay filed."

After careful consideration of this phase of the

matter we are of the opinion that the recital in the

decree could have no bearing on the question unless

it had the effect of making the order allowing coun-

sel fees a part of the decree. That it does not

have this effect seems clear. The decree orders the

full value of the Ookala leasehold as found by the

Circuit Judge set aside by the [67] trustees as

capital and the further recital that the remainder-

men will be entitled to that sum on the termination

of the trust less the amount of fees ordered paid

out of it is of no effect for the reason that such

recital could not have the effect of irrevocably fixing

the amount to which the remaindermen will be

entitled at the termination of the trust. It is not

impossible that further sums may be ordered paid

out of capital before the termination of the trust, in

which event the remaindermen would not be entitled

to that amount. It seems clear to us that the most

that can be said of the order in question is that it

was made in a proceeding which was collateral to

the case on trial. It did not settle any issue in

that case and is foreign to the subject matter

thereof although growing out of it. It necessarily

follows that the general appeal of the remainder-

men from the decree does not bring up for review



84 Eva Gay et al

the order allowing and apportioning the payment

of counsel fees.

Both the decree and the order should he affirmed

and it is so ordered.

W. L. STANLEY, for the trustees.

H. EDMONDSON, in proper person and for the

minor respondents.

L. J. WAREEN (W. O. SMITH with him on the

brief), for the life tenants.

JAMES L. COKE.
S. B. KEMP.
W. S. EDINGS.

[Endorsed] ; No. 1348. Supreme Court Terri-

tory of Hawaii. October Term, 1921. H. Focke

and H. M. von Holt, Trustees Under the Will and

of the Estate of James Gay, Deceased, vs. Llewell.yn

Napela Gay, et al. Opinion. Filed February 28,

1922, at 11 :20 A. M. J. A. Thompson, Clerk. [68]

In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Tiustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
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ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON,
HELEN FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY,
EVA GAY, a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a

Minor, SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA
GAY, a Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K.

GAY, a Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA
GAY, a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS,
a Minor, WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a

Minor, ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and

ETHEL FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Decree.

In the above-entitled cause, pursuant to the

opinion of the above-entitled court rendered and

filed on the 28th day of February, 1922, the decree

and order, both dated the 1st day of August, 1921,

of the Court below are aiSrmed.

Dated, Honolulu, T. H., March 8, 1922.

By the Court.

[Seal] ROBERT PARKER, Jr.,

Assistant Clerk, Supreme Court.

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court

of the Territory of Hawaii. H. Focke et al., Com-

plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al.. Re-

spondents. Decree. Rec'd and filed in the Supreme

Court, Mar. 8, 1922, at 2:55 o'clock P. M. Robert

Parker, Jr., Assistant Clerk. H. Edmondson,

Honolulu, T. H., Attorney for Minor Respondents.

[69]
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In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON,
HELEN FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY,
EVA GAY, a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a

Minor, SONNY JAMBS MOKULEIA
GAY, a Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K.

GAY, a Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA
GAY, a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS,
a Minor, WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a

Minor, ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and

ETHEL FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Petition for Appeal.

To the Honorable the Chief Justice of the Supreme

Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

Now (;ome Eva Gay, a minor, Beatrice Gay, a

minor, Sonny James Mokuleia Gay, a minor,

Michael Vanatta K. Gay, a minor, Llewellyn Na-

pela Gay, a minor, Albert Gay Harris, a minor,

Walter William Holt, a minor, Alice K. Holt, a

minor, and Ethel Frida Holt, a minor, by Harry



vs. E, Focke et al. 87

Edmondson, their Guardian ad Litem, and feeling

themselves aggrieved by the final decree of this

Court entered herein on the eighth day of March,

A. D. 1922, hereby pray that an appeal may be

allowed from the said decree to the [70] United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit under and according to the laws of the

United States in that behalf made and provided;

that a transcript of record, proceedings and docu-

mentary exhibits upon which said decree was made

duly authenticated may be sent to the said United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit, and in connection with this petition, peti-

tioners herewith present their assignment of errors.

Your petitioners further show that said decree

was rendered in an action in equity and that the

amount involved, exclusive of costs, exceeds

$5000.00.

H. EDMONDSON,
Guardian ad Litem for the Minor Respondents-Ap-

pellants.

Territory of Hawaii,

City and County of Honolulu,—ss.

H. Edmondson, being duly sworn, states that he

ds guardian ad litem for the petitioners named in

the foregoing petition.

That he has read the foregoing petition and

knows its contents and that the matters and things

therein set forth are true of his own knowledge.

And further, that the amount involved in the

cause aforesaid, exclusive of costs as shown by
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the record in said cause, exceeds the value of

$5000.00.

H. EDMONDSON.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 28th day

of June, 1922.

[Seal] ALEXANDER A. HOBSON,
Notary Public, First Judicial Circuit, Territory of

Hawaii. [71]

In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON,
HELEN FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY,
EVA GAY, a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a

Minor, SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA
GAY, a Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K.

GAY, a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS,
a Minor, WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a

Minor, ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and

ETHEL FRIDA HOLT, a Minor, LLEW-
ELLYN NAPELA GAY, a Minor,

Respondents.
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Assignment of Errors on Appeal.

Now come the appellants, Eva Gay, a minor,

Beatrice Gay, a minor. Sonny James Mokuleia Gay,

a minor, Michael Vanatta K. Gay, a minor, Llew-

ellyn Napela Gay, a minor, Albert Gay Harris, a

minor, Walter William Holt, a minor, Alice K.

Holt, a minor, and Ethel Frida Holt, a minor, by

Harry Edmondson, their guardian ad litem, and

in connection with their petition for appeal say

that in the record, proceedings, decisions and de-

cree aforesaid manifest error has intervened to the

prejudice of the appellants, to wit: [72]

1. The Court erred in not holding that, under

the terms of the will dated May 25, 1893, of James

Gay, deceased, the net rents, or, their actuarial

value as of the testator's death on May 28, 1893,

derived from subleases of certain leasehold prop-

erty held by the testator, at the time of his death,

consisting of about 2500 acres of land situate at

Mokuleia, Island of Oahu, for a term of 50 years

from May 1, 1884, (hereinafter referred to as the

^^ Mokuleia lease") form part of the corpus of

testator's estate given in trust for testator's grand-

children, to wit: the minor respondents above-

named appellants.

2. The Court erred in find and holding that,

under the terms of said will, whatever sums the

trustees received for the said Mokuleia lease, to wit

:

the net rents derived from the sublease thereof,,

were income and that the life tenants (being all

but one of testator's children named in his will
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and the issue of one deceased child) were entitled

to receive it.

3. The Court erred in not holding under the

terms of the said will that it was open to the trus-

tees upon receiving proper security to give the

life tenants the use of the net rents as they were

received from subleases of the land comprised in

the said Mokuleia lease, and, that in paying the

same to the life tenants and the life tenants in

receiving the same, they must be deemed or held

to have elected this method of reinvestment of the

net rents which comprised part of the corpus of

the said estate.

4. The Court erred in not holding under the terms

of said [73] will that the trustees thereof, in

subleasing all the land comprised in the said Moku-

leia lease for the unexpired period except the last

few days of the said term thereof, in effect sold

the said Mokuleia lease at a price payable by in-

stallments, such price being the net annual sums

received for same; and that the amounts so re-

ceived and to be received from such subleases or

their value as of testator's death form part of the

corpus of testator's estate.

5. The Court erred in finding and holding under

.the terms of the said will that the trustees thereof

did not by subleasing all the land comprised in the

said Mokuleia lease, in effect, sell the said Moku-

leia lease at a price to be paid for in installments;

and, that the net amounts received from such sub-

leases were not corpus but income of the estate

payable to the life tenants.
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6. The Court erred in not holding under the

terms of the said will that the net rents amount-

ing in the aggregate to $34,329.24, received from

subleases of certain leasehold property held by the

testator at the time of his death, consisting of

about 1200 acres of land situate at Humuula,

Ookala, Island of Hawaii, for a term of 25 years

extended for a further term of 7 years and ulti-

mately expiring March 1, 1908 (hereinafter re-

ferred to as the ^^ Ookala lease'')? ^U formed part

of the corpus of testator's estate.

7. The Court erred in finding and holding under

the terms of said will that only $20,668.35, a part

of $34,329.24, the net rents received by the trus-

tees from subleases of the land comprised in the

said Ookala lease, should have been invested [74]1

as capital or corpus of the estate; and that the

balance of $13,660.89, a part of said net rents,

should be distributed to life tenants as income.

8. The Court erred in not holding under the

terms of said will that it was open to the trustees,

upon receiving proper security, to give the life

tenants the use of the net rents as they were re-

ceived from subleases of the land comprised in the

said Ookala lease, and, that in paying the same to

the life tenants and the life tenants in receiving

the same, they must be deemed or held to have

elected this method of reinvestment of the net

rents which comprised part of the corpus of the

said estate.

9. The Court erred in finding and holding un-

der the terms of said will that the trustees at the
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inception of the trust might not (by analogy to a

direct gift of money for life) have paid the rents

as received to the tenants for life upon receiving

reasonable security to preserve the fund for the

xemaindermen, and that the only course which the

trustees had an absolute right to pursue was to

jpromptly convert the wasting assets into an au-

thorized permanent investment and pay the in-

come derived therefrom, whatever it might be, to

,the life tenants and preserve the capital amount

for the remaindermen.

10. The Court erred in finding the issues on

the construction of the will for the life tenants,

respondents above named other than said minor

.respondents.

11. The Court erred in not finding the issues

upon the construction of the will for the minor

respondents appellants. [75]

12. The Court erred in decreeing that the de-.

cree appealed from should be affirmed.

13. The Court erred in not decreeing that the

decree appealed from should be set aside.

14. The decree is against the manifest inten-

tion of the testator as expressed in his will.

15. The decree is against the manifest weight

of evidence.

16. The decree is contrary to law.

WHEREFORE appellants pray that the decree

of the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii

may be reversed and remanded with directions to

the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii to

enter a decree that the net rents received and to
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be received by the trustees of the will of James

Gay, deceased, or the value thereof, from the Mo-

kuleia lease and the Ookala lease, are part of the

corpus of the estate of James Gay, deceased, and

[Should be restored thereto, or security for the res-

toration thereof taken from the life tenants, andl

should be held in trust for the grandchildren of

the testator as provided in his said will.

Dated at Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii, this.

<28th day of June, 1922.

HARRY EDMONDSON,
Guardian Ad Litem for Petitioners-Appellants.

[76]

Received a copy of the within written petition

for appeal and assignment of errors on appeal, and

receipt of a true copy thereof this 28th day of June,

1922, is hereby admitted.

W. L. STANLEY,
Attorney for Complainants-Appellees.

W. 0. SMITH and

L. J. WARREN,
Attorneys for Respondents Other than Minor Re-

spondents-Appellees.

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court

of the Territory of Hawaii. H. Focke et al.. Com-

plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al.. Re-

spondents. Petition for Appeal and Assignment

of Errors on Appeal. Rec'd. and filed in the

Supreme Court June 30, 1922, at 10:12 o'clock

A. M. Robert Parker, Jr., Deputy Clerk. [77]
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In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON,
HELEN FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY,
EVA GAY, a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a

Minor, SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA
GAY, a Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K.

GAY, a Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA
GAY, a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS,
a Minor, WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a

Minor, ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and

ETHEL FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Order Allowing Appeal.

Upon reading and filing the foregoing petition

for an appeal to the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth .Circuit, upon considera-

tion of the assignment of errors presented and

filed therewith,

—

IT IS ORDERED that the said appeal to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit be and it is hereby allowed.
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Dated at Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii, this

30tli day of June, 1922.

[Seal] E. C. PETERS,
Chief Justice, Supreme Court of the Territory of

Hawaii. [78]

Received a copy of the within written order

allowing appeal and receipt of a copy is hereby

admitted this 30th day of June, 1922.

W. L. STANLEY,
Attorney for Complainants-Appellees.

W. O. SMITH,
L. J. WARREN,

Attorneys for Respondents-Appellees, Other Than

Minor Respondents.

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court

of the Territory of Hawaii. H. Focke et al.. Com-

plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al.. Re-

spondents. Order Allowing Appeal. Rec'd and

•filed in the Supreme Court June 30, 1922, at 11:45

o'clock A. M. Robert Parker, Jr., Deputy Clerk.

[79]
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In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON,
HELEN FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY,
EVA GAY, a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a

Minor, SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA
GAY, a Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K.

GAY, a Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA
GAY, a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS,
a Minor, WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a

Minor, ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and

ETHEL FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Appeal Bond.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS
that Harry Edmondson, of the City and County of

Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii, as principal, and

the United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company,

a corporation duly authorized to carry on a bond-

ing business in the Territory of Hawaii, as surety,

are held and firmly bound unto H. Focke and
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H. M. von Holt, trustees under the will and of

the estate of James Gay, deceased, complainants

above named, and Llewell}^ Napela Gay, Regi-

nald Eric Gay, Arthur Francis Gay, Alice Mary

K. Richardson, Helen Fanny Gay and Frida Gay,

some of the respondents above named, hereinafter

called the appellees, in the sum of $500.00 to be

paid to said appellees, to which pa3niient well and

truly to be made we 'bind ourselves and our as-

signs jointly and severally by these presents. [80]

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS

AS FOLLOWS

:

WHEREAS the minor respondents above named

by Harry Edmondson, their guardian ad litem,

appellants, have taken an appeal from the Supreme

Court of the Territory of Hawaii to the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit to reverse the decree of the said Supreme

Court entered on the eighth day of March, A. D.

1922, in the above-entitled suit;

NOW, THEREFORE, if the above-named ap-

pellants shall prosecute the said appeal to effect and

answer to all costs that may be adjudged if they

shall fail to make good their appeal then this obli-

gation is to be void; otherwise to remain in full

force and effect.
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Sealed with our seals and dated this 30th day

of June, 1922.

HAREY EiDMONDSON,
Principal.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND
GUARANTY COMPANY.

By HERMAN LUIS, (Seal)

Attorney in Fact,

Surety.

Approved as to form, sufficiency and amount

this '30th day of June, 1922.

[Seal] E. C. PETERS,
Chief Justice of the Supreme Court, Territory of

Hawaii. [81]

Service of the within appeal bond and receipt of

a copy is hereby admitted this day of June,

K. D. 1922.

Attorney for Complainants-Appellees.

Attorney for Respondents-Appellees, Other Than

Minor Respondents.

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court

of the Territory of Haw^aii. H. Focke et al..

Complainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al..

Respondents. Appeal Bond. Rec'd and filed in

the Supreme Court June 30, 1922, at 4:00 o'clocki

P. M. Robert Parker, Jr., Deputy Clerk. [82]
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In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA OAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON,
HELEN FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY,
EVA GAY, a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a

Minor, SONNY JAMES MO'KULBIA
GAY, a Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K.

GAY, a Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA
GAY, a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS,
a Minor, WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a

Minor, ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and

ETHEL FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Citation.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,—ss.

The President of the United States of America to

H. Focke and H. M. von Holt, Trustees Under

the Will of the Estate of James Gay, Deceased,

and Llewellyn Napela Gay, Reginald Eric

Gay, Arthur Francis Gay, Alice Mary K.

Richardson, Helen Fanny Gay, and Frida Gay,

GREETING:
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You are hereby cited and admonislied to be and

appear at the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit at the City of San Fran-

cisco, State of California, within thirty days from

the date of this writ, pursuant to an appeal duly

allowed by the Supreme Court of the Territory of

[83] Hawaii and filed in the Clerk's office of said

court on the 30th day o."'^ June, A. D. 1922, in the

cause wherein Eva Ga}^, a minor, Beatrice Gay, a

minor. Sonny James Mokuleia Gay, a minor,

Michael Vanatta K. Gay, a minor, Llewellyn Napela

Gay, a minor, Albert Gay Harris, a minor, Walter

William Holt, a minor, Alice K. Holt, a minor, and

Ethel Prida Holt, by Harry Edmondson, their

guardian ad litem, are appellants and you are ap-

pellees, to show cause, if any, wh}^ the decree ren-

dered against said appellants as in said appeal

mentioned should not be corrected, and why speedy

justice should not be done to the parties in that

behalf.

WITNESS the hand and seal of the Honorable

the Chief Justice of the Territory of Hawaii this

1st day of July, in the year of our Lord one thou-

sand nine hundred and twenty-two.

E. C. PETERS,
Chief Justice, Supreme Court of Territory of

Hawaii.

[Seal] Attest: ROBERT PARKER, Jr.,

Deputy Clerk of the Supreme Court. [84]
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Service of the within citation and receipt of a

copy is hereby admitted this 1st day of July, A. D.

1922.

W. L. STANLEY,
Attorney for Complainants-Appellees.

W. O. SMITH,
L. J. WARREN,

Attorneys for Respondents-Appellees, Other Than

Minor Respondents.

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court

of the Territory of Hawaii, H. Focke, et al.. Com-

plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al.. Respond-

ents. Citation. Rec'd and filed in the Supreme

Court, July 1, 1922 at 11:42 o'clock A. M. Robert

Parker, Jr., Deputy. [85]

In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348. '

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLElWELLYN NAPELA GAT, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY,
a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor,

SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a



102 Eva Gay ci al

Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a

Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY,
a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
PRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Order Extending Time to and Including Septem-

ber 30, 1922, for Preparation and Transmission

of Record.

Upon the application of counsel for the minor re-

spondents-appellants herein, and just cause appear-

ing therefor, and pursuant to Section 1 of Rule 1'6

of the Rules of the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

—

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the minor re-

spondents-appellants herein and the Clerk of this

Court be and they are hereby allowed until and

including the 30th day of September, 1922, within

which to prepare and transmit to the Clerk of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit at San Francisco, California, the

record in the above-entitled cause on appeal, to-

gether with petition for appeal, assignment of

errors and citation, and all [86] other papers as

part of said record.

Dated at Honolulu, T. H., July 15, 1922.

E. C. PETERS,
Chief Justice, Supreme Court, Territory of Hawaii.

[Seal] Attest: ROBERT PARKER, Jr.,

Deputy Clerk, Supreme Court. [87]
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Receipt of a copy of the within written order is

hereby admitted this 17th day of July, 1922.

W. L. STANLEY,
By A. H.

Attorneys for Complainants-Appellees.

SMITH & WAREEN,

Per R. A. V.,

Attorneys for Respondents-Appellees.

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court

of the Territor}^ of Hawaii. H. Focke, et al., Com-

plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al.. Respond-

ents. Order Extending Time to and Including

September 30, 1922, for Preparation and Transmis-

sion of Record. Rec'd and filed in the Supreme

Court, July 17, 1922, at 1:50 o'clock P. M., and Is-

sued for Service. Robert Parker, Jr., Deputy. Re-

turned at 3:55 o'clock P. M. July 17, 1922. Robert

Parker, Jr., Deputy Clerk. [88]

In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

H. FOCKE and H. M, von HOLT, Trustees Under

the WiU and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,

Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIO GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
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FANNY GAY, FEIDA GAY, EVA GAY,
a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor,

SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a

Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a

Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY,
a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Order Extending Time to and Including November

30, 1922, for Preparation and Transmission of

Record.

Upon the application of counsel for the minor re-

spondents-appellants herein, and just cause appear-

ing therefor, and pursuant to Section 1 of Rule 16

of the Rules of the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the minor re-

spondents-appellants herein and the Clerk of this

Court be and they are hereby allowed until and in-

cluding the 30th day of November, 1922, within

which to prepare and transmit to the Clerk of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit at San Francisco, California, the

record in the above-entitled cause on appeal, to-

gether with petition for appeal, assignment of

errors and citation, and all [89] other papers as

part of said record.
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Dated at Honolulu, T. H., September 18th, 1922.

E. 0. PETERS,
Chief Justice, Supreme Court, Territory of Hawaii.

[Seal] Attest: ROBEET PARKER, Jr.,

Deputy Clerk, Supreme Court.

Consented to:

W. O. SMITH,
Per R. A. V.,

L. J. WARREN,
Per R. A. V.,

Attorneys for Respondents-Appellees. [90]

Service of copy of the within order is hereby ad-

mitted this 18 day of Sept., 1922.

W. L. STANLEY,
Per R. A. V.,

Attorney for Complainants-Appellees.

W. O. SMITH,
Per R. A. V.,

L. J. WARREN,
Per R. A. V.,

Attorneys for Respondents-Appellees.

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court

of the Territory of Hawaii. H. Focke, et al., Com-

plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al., Respond-

ents. Order Extending Time to and Including No-

vember 30, 1922, for Preparation and Transmission

of Record. Rec'd and filed in the Supreme Court,

Sept. 18, 1922, at 2:45 o'clock P. M. Robert Parker,

Jr., Deputy Clerk. [91]
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In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

BILL FOE INiSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,

Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPBLA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,

ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY,

a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor,

SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a

Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a

Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY,
a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Stipulation Re Taking Appeal Under Rule 75 (Su-

preme Court Equity Rules).

Doubt having arisen as to the proper method by

which an appeal should be taken in an equity ease

from the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii

to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals of

the Ninth Circuit, the parties to the above-entitled

cause do hereby state their understanding that such
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a case is governed by Eule No. 75 of the Equity

Eules of the Supreme Court of the United States,

and do hereby stipulate that such appeal may be

taken as provided by said Rule No. 75.

Dated, at Honolulu, T. H., November IB, 1922.

W. L. STANLEY,
Counsel for Complainants (Appellees).

WILLIAM 0. SMITH and

L. J. WARREN,
Counsel for Life Tenants, Respondents (Appellees).

H. EDMONDSON,
Counsel for Minor Respondents (Appellants).

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court

of the Territory of Hawaii. H. Focke, et al.. Com-

plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gav et al.. Defend-

ants. Stipulation. Ree'd and filed in the Supreme

Court, Nov. 15, 1922, at 10:50 o'clock A. M. Robert

Parker, Jr., Deputy Clerk. H. Edmondson, Hono-

lulu, T. H., Attorney for Minor Respondents. [92]

In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the WiU and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
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ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, PRIDA GAY, EVA GAY,
a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor,

SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a

Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a

Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY,
a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
PRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Order Extending Time to and Including December

30, 1922, for Preparation and Transmission of

Record.

Upon the application of counsel for the minor re-

spondents-appellants herein, and just cause appear-

ing therefor, and pursuant to Section 1 of Rule 16

of the Rules of the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

—

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the minor re-

spondents-appellants herein and the Clerk of this

Court be and they are hereby allowed until and in-

cluding the 30th day of December, 1922, within

which to prepare and transmit to the Clerk of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit at San Prancisco, California, the rec-

ord in the above-entitled cause on appeal, together

with petition for appeal, assignment of errors and

citation, and all [93] other papers as part of said

record.
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Dated at Honolulu, T. H., November 17, 1922.

E. C. PETERS,
Chief Justice, Supreme Court, Territory of Hawaii.

[Seal] Attest: J. A. THOMPSON,
Clerk, Supreme Court.

Consented to:

Attorney for Complainants-Appellees.

Attorney for Respondents-Appellees. [94]

I certify that I served true copies of the mthin

order on W. L. Stanley, attorney for complainants-

appellees, and on D. 0. Smith & L. J. Warren, at-

torneys for respondents-appellees by leaving said

copies with a clerk in their offices this 17th Nov.,

1922.

H. EDMONDSON,
Attorney for Appellants.

Service of a copy of the within order admitted

this 17th day of November, 1922.

Attorney for Complainants-Appellees.

Attorney for Respondents-Appellees.

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court

of the Territory of Hawaii. H. Focke, et al.. Com-
plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al.. Respond-

ents. Order Extending Time for Preparation of

Record. Filed November 17, 1922 at 11:55 A. M.

J. A. Thompson, Clerk. [95]



110 Eva. Gay et al

In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

H. FOOKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY,
a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor,

SONNY JAMBS MOKULEIA GAY, a

Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a

Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY,
a Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Order Extending Time to and Including February

15, 1923, for Preparation and Transmission of

Record.

Upon the applif-ation of counsel for the minor re-

spondents-appellants herein, and .just cause appear-

ing therefor, and pursuant to Section 1 of Rule 16

of the Rules of the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

—

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the minor re-

spondents-appellants herein and the Clerk of this



vs. H. Focke et al. Ill

Court be and they are hereby allowed until and in-

cluding the 15th day of February, 1923, within

which to prepare and transmit to the Clerk of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit at San Francisco, [96] California,

the record in the above-entitled cause on appeal, to-

gether with petition for appeal, assignment of er-

rors and citation, and all other papers as part of

said record.

Dated at Honolulu, T. H., December 18, 1922.

E. C. PETERS,
Chief Justice, Supreme Court, Territory of Hawaii.

[>Seal] Attest: J. A. THOMPSON,
Clerk, Supreme Court. [97]

I certify that I have served true copies of the

within order upon Mr. W. L. Stanley, attorney for

complainants-appellees, and on Messrs. W. O. Smith

and L. J. Warren, attorneys for respondents-appel-

lees, by leaving same at their office this 18th day

of December, 1922.

H. EDMONDSON,
Guardian Ad Litem and Attorney for Minor Ee-

spondents.

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court

of the Territory of Hawaii. H. Focke, et al., Com-

plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al.. Respond-

ents. Order Extending Time. Filed December 18,

1922, at 1 :45 P. M. J. A. Thompson, Clerk Supreme

Court of Hawaii. [98]
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In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY, a

Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor, SONNY
JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a Minor,

MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a Minor,

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, a Minor,

ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor, ALICE
K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL FRIDA
HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Praecipe for Transcript of Record.

To James A. Thompson, Esquire, Clerk of the Su-

preme Court of the Territory of Hawaii:

You,will please prepare and certify a transcript

of the record in this, the above-entitled cause, to

be filed in the office of the Clerk of the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, upon the appeal heretofore allowed, and in-

clude in said transcript the following pleadings.
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proceedings, opinions, judgments, exhibits, affi-

davits and papers on file in said cause, to wit:

A. In record No. 1273:

(1) Complainants' petition and verification

thereof by H. Focke, and attached

thereto: Copy of will of James Q-ay

dated May 25, 1893; [99]

(2) Order dated August 7, 1919, appointing

guardian ad litem for minor respond-

ents;

(3) Answer of respondents other than the

minor respondents dated November 26,

1919;

(4) Amended answer of minor respondents

dated January 23, 1920;

(5) Decree of Honorable Jas. J. Banks dated

and entered in Circuit Court on April

6, 1920;

(6) Opinion of the Supreme Court of the Ter-

ritor}^ of Hawaii filed April 5, 1921;

(7) Notice of decision on appeal dated May
27, 1921, by the Supreme Court to the

Honorable Jas. J. Banks, Judge of the

First Circuit Court of the Territory of

Hawaii;

B. In record No. 1348:

(8) Decree of Honorable Jas. J. Banks entered

and filed in the Circuit Court on August

1, 1921;

(9) Opinion of the Supreme Court filed Feb-

ruary 28, 1922;
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(10) Decree filed in the Supreme Court March

8, 1922;

(11) Petition of minor respondents by their

guardian ad litem for appeal, with affi-

davit of H. Edmondson attached;

(12) Order allowing appeal;

(13) Appeal bond;

(13b) Stipulation that appeal be taken under

Rule 75 (Supreme Court Equity Rules),

filed November 15, 1922
;
[Interlined with

permission of Chief Justice Peters with

consent of L. J. Warren this 16th Feb.,

1923.—H. E.]

(14) Statement of evidence as and when ap-

proved by the Supreme Coiu't or a Jus-

tice thereof;

(15) Certificate of Justice re statement of evi-

dence as and w^hen filed.

You will also please annex to and transmit with

the record the original assignment of errors on ap-

peal and the original Citation dated July 1, 1922,

with admission of service of copies thereof by W.

L. Stanley, attorney for complainants-appellees,

and W. 0. Smith and L. J. Warren, Attorneys for

respondents-appellees, also originals of the follow-

ing orders:

Order filed July 15, 1922, extending time for prep-

aration and transmission of record to September

30, 1922;

Order filed September 18, 1922, extending time

for preparation and transmission of record to No-

vember 30, 1922; [100]
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Order filed November 17, 1922, extending time

for preparation and transmission of record to De-

cember 30, 1922;

Order filed December 18, 1922, extending time

for preparation and transmission of record to Feb-

ruary 15, 1923.

Also your certificates under seal stating in detail

the cost of the record and by whom the same was

paid.

Dated, Honolulu, Hawaii, December 18, 1922.

Respectfully,

H. EDMONDSON,
Guardian Ad Litem and Attorney for Minor Re-

spondents-Appellants.

Service of a <3opy of the foregoing praecipe is

admitted this 18th day of December, 1922.

W. O. SMITH,
L. J. WARREN,

Attorneys for Life Tenants-Appellees.

W. L. STANLEY,
By WM. T. RAWLINS,

Attys. for Complainants. [101]

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court of

the Territory of Hawaii. H. Focke et al.. Com-

plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al.. Re-

spondents. Praecipe for Transcript of Record.

Filed December 18, 1922, at 1:45 P. M. J. A.

Thompson, Clerk Supreme Court of Hawaii. [10i2]
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In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii-

No. 1348.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY et al.,

Respondents.

Additional Praecipe of Appellees.

To James A. Thompson, Esq., Clerk of the Supreme

Court of the Territory of Hav^aii:

In conjunction with and as a part of the tran-

script of the record upon the , appeal of the minor

respondents and their guardian ad litem in the

above-entitled cause, respecting which appellants

have filed their praecipe with you on December

18, 1922:

You will please also prepare and certify the fol-

lowing additional portions of the record, including

them in their chronological order in said record,

namely

:

(4a) The decision of the Honorable James J.

Banks, Circuit Judge, dated and filed (in

record No. 1273) April 2, 1920;

(6a) The opinion of the Supreme Court of the

Territor}^ of Hawaii, on rehearing, dated

and filed (in record No. 1273) May 7, 1921,-
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(7a) The decision of the Honorable James J.

Banks, Circuit Judge, dated and filed (in

record No. 1348) August 1, 1921;

(13a) This praecipe.

Dated: Honolulu, T. H., December 26, 1922.

Respectfully,

WILLIAM 0. SMITH,
LOUIS J. WARREN,

Attorneys for Life Tenant Respondents-Appellees.

[103]

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court of

the Territory of Hawaii. H. Pocke and H. M. von

Holt, Trustees Under the Will and of the Estate

of James Gay, Deceased, Complainants, vs. Llewel-

lyn Napela Gay et al.. Respondents. Appellees^

Praecipe. Piled December 26, 1922, at 3:35 P. M.

J. A. Thompson, Clerk.

Service of a copy of the foregoing Praecipe is

admitted this 26th day of December, 1922.

H. EDMONDSON,
Guardian Ad Litem and Attorney for Minor Re-

spondents-Appellants.

W. L. STANLEY,
By W. T. R.

WILLIAM T. RAWLINS,
Attorneys for Complainants-Appellees. [104]



118 Eva Gay et al

In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

No. 1348.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under
the Will and of the Estate of JAMES' GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY,
a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor,

SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a

Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a

Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, a

Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Order Extending Time to and Including April 5,

1923, for Preparation and Transmission of

Record.

Upon the application of counsel for the Minor

Respondents-Appellants herein, and just cause ap-

pearing therefor, and pursuant to Section 1 of Rule

16 of the Rules of the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Minor

Respondents-Appellants herein and the Clerk of

this Court be and they are hereby allowed until and
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including the 5th day of April, 1923, within which to

prepare and transmit to the Clerk of the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit at San Francisco, California, [105] the

record in the above-entitled cause on appeal, to-

gether with petition for appeal, assignment of errors

and citation, and all other papers as part of said

record.

Dated at Honolulu, T. H., February 2, 1923.

E. C. PETERS,
Chief Justice, Supreme Court, Territory of Hawaii.

[Seal] . Attest: J. A. THOMPSON,
Clerk, Supreme Court.

Approved February 2, 1923.

Attorneys for Life Tenants Respondents-Appellees.

[106]

I hereby certify that I served true copies of the

within order upon Messrs. W. 0. Smith and L. J.

Warren, attorneys for the life tenants, appellees,

and upon Mr. W. L. Stanley, Attorney for com-

plainants, by leaving copies in their offices this 2d

day of February, 1923.

H. EDMONDSON,
Guardian Ad Litem and Attorney for Minor Re-

spondents.

[Endorsed] : No. 1348. In the Supreme Court of

the Territory of Hawaii. H. Focke et al., Com-

plainants, vs. Llewellyn Napela Gay et al., Respond-

ents. Order Extending Time to and Including

April 5, 1923, for Preparation and Transmission of
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Record. Filed February 2, 1923, at 2 :5Q P. M.
J. A. Thompson, Clerk Supreme Court of Hawaii.

[107]

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Judicial Circuit.

BILL FOR INSTRUCTIONS.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under
the Will and of the Estate of JAMES- GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY,
a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor,

SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a

Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a

Minor, LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, a

Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.

Statement of Evidence.

James Gay made a will which was admitted in

evidence, a true copy of which is attached to the

petition forming part of the record. (To avoid

duplication of printing, a copy of the will referred

to is incorporated herein by reference as fully as if

it were recopied here.)
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Testimony of Herman Focke, for Complainants.

HERMAN FOCKE, one of the trustees under

the testator's will, was called by the complainants

as a witness, and testified:

I have resided in Honolulu nearly forty years

and knew James Gay in his lifetime, and for a

good many years before his death on May 28, 1893.

He was living on his ranch at Mokuleia [108]

where for about nine years before and until his

death he was personally conducting a ranching

business, consisting of horses and cattle. When
I was appointed one of the executors of his estate

his property consisted of:

(a) A leasehold (hereinafter called the ^^Moku-

leia lease") made to him by J. P. Mendonca, dated

May 27, 1884, of about 2500 acres of land at Moku-

leia, Island of Oahu, for a term of 50 years from

May 1, 1884, expiring May 1, 1934, at an annual

rent of $1,250.00 and taxes;

(b) A leasehold made to him by the Commis-

sioner of Crown Lands of the Government of Ha-

waii, dated March 1, 1876, of land at Humula,

Ookala, Island of Hawaii, for a term of 25 years

expiring March 1, 1901, under which he had made

a sublease to the Ookala Sugar Company to expire

with the head lease in 1901, under which he was

teceiving and to receive, as rent, 5% of the sugar

produced from the land. Before his death he ob-

tained a seven years' extension from the Government

until March 1, 1908, at a nominal rent or rent free,
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(Testimony of Herman Focke.)

but the sublease or sugar agreement with the Ookala

Sugar Company was not extended in his lifetime.

In July, 1900, the trustees of his estate extended

it to the end of the additional term—1908;

(c) Cattle, horses, mules, farming implements

and household furniture, valued in this estate in-

ventory at his death at about $2,310.00; and

(d) Cash in my hands, as his agent, amounting

to $816.59.

Gay formerly conducted a sheep ranch at Hu-

muula. Then he sold that out, and retained for

himself that part of [109] the Ookala leased land

which he had contracted or subleased to the Ookala

Sugar Company and which was suitable for cane

land, about 1200 acres.

The values in the inventory as to the leaseholds

were, for the Mokuleia lease $7,500.00, and for the

Ookala lease $5,000.00. These were placed on them

by me according to my best judgment after con-

ferring with the estate's attorney, Cecil Brown,

and Tom Gay, decedent's brother, a practical cattle-

man. The value so stated for the Ookala lease was

as it then stood, in view of the fact that the agree-

ment with the Ookala Sugar Company was pro-

ducing about $650.00 a year; that was the correct

value of the Ookala lease agreement with the Ookala

Sugar Company. Mr. Gay left no real estate.

The indebtedness of his estate was about $5,000.00,

consisting of outstanding notes and the funeral

expenses.
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(Testimony of Herman Focke.)

At the time of Mr. Gay's death his family con-

sisted of a wife and seven children (three sons

and four daughters), all living with him on the

ranch premises and all of whom, except one daugh-

ter, are still living and are named as respondents

in this case. All of the minor respondents are

grandchildren of the testator. At the time of his

death his youngest child was three or four years

old and his eldest about sixteen years.

The testator conducted the ranch, on the greater

part of the Mokuleia premises, and subleased the

remainder to others, and at the time of his death

he was receiving from subleases of portions of

Mokuleia a total gross annual rental of $2,723.50,

out of which he was paying the head rent of

$1,250.00. By the terms of this head lease he was

obligated to cut lantana (a noxious shrub then

prevalent) at heavy expense or there was danger

of losing the head lease. [110]

The family continued to reside at Mokuleia until

Mr. Gay died, in April, 1895, when the children

went to Honolulu. After Gay's death the trustees

continued to carry on the testator's ranching busi-

ness along the same general lines as he had done

in his lifetime, until some time in the year 1906

when the livestock and movable assets used in

connection with the ranching business were sold by

the trustees, realizing $4,065.00 net. This sum has

since been invested and held by the trustees as cor-

pus of the estate. In the meantime, on December 9,
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(Testimony of Herman Focke.)

1898, a portion of the Mokuleia lease containing an

area of about 800 acres was subleased by the trustee

to B. F. Dillingham for the balance of the term of the

head lease at a rental of five per cent of the sugar (or

the proceeds thereof ) grown thereon. This sublease

was assigned to the Waialua Agricultural Company

>and on July 2, 1902, the trustee subleased to that

Company for the remainder of the term of the head

lease 65 acres more of the Mokuleia lease at a like

sugar basis rental. In 1906 when the ranch stock

was sold the rest of the Mokuleia lease was sub-

leased by the trustees to others for fixed annual

rentals and for the remainder of the term of the

head lease. All of the Mokuleia lease is now sub-

let.

On assuming charge of the estate, I found no

books of the testator showing an account of the

returns to him from the ranch, or his expenses in

connection with the ranch.

From my accounts I find that for the first seven

years of the trust the average returns per annum

on the Mokuleia property were $999.13, after in-

cluding the income from all sources at Mokuleia and

the income from the subleases and rights of way

and from the sales and disposition of cattle, stock

and [111] ranch profits, and deducting therefrom

expenses of $84,424.00. In 1893, the year of the

testator's death, the amount received by the execu-

tors as returns from the Ookala Sugar Company

was $642.79, and the net return from the same

source for the year preceding the testator's death
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(Testimony of Herman Focke.)

was $6'43.90. During the first seven years of the

trust the average amount received by the trustees

from the Ookala property was $1,383.54.

The first returns of income under the sublease

made to Waiahia Agricultural Company came in

1900 and 1901, up to which time the average in-

come from Mokuleia was $999.13 as stated, and

$1300.00 was the average income from the Ookala

property.

Some of the subleased lands (not those subleased

to Waialua Agricultural Company) were aban-

doned in 1905 and we could not get any other tenants.

There were rice lands, of which the soil was un-

suitable, poho (meaning lost, or lost in value),

porous, used too much water, and the tenants

could not make it pay, and when P. M. Pond made

us an offer to su^^lease we accepted it, and under

this sublease to him the estate secured a greater

income than if it had continued to be conducted as

a ranching business through the trustees. (The

Court denied a motion by the guardian ad litem to

strike the matters stated (in substance) in this

paragraph as being irrelevant, incompetent and im-

material.)

Since the inception of the trust and until the

filing of the bill in this case the trustees have paid

out all of the income of the estate, first to the widow,

Mrs. Gay, and afterwards to the children of Mr.

Gay, until I was recently advised by the trustees'

counsel, W. L. Stanley, in an opinion rendered in

July, 1919, that there was some question as to
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(Testimony of Herman Focke.)

whether the trustees' course in so dealing with the

income was correct or not. [112]

(On cross-examination this witness gave figures,

without details, as to realizations from the Ookala

lease, from 1893 to 1906/ which are not included

here because they were incomplete on this first

.hearing and were on the second hearing brought

out in detail, gross and net, as appears in the state-

ment appearing below as a copy of Respondents'

Minors Exhibit ''A.")

The total income of the Mokuleia property from

the inception of the trust down to 1907, was $90,-

690.63, including the ranch business and everything

with it. The net for those years was $6,266.37.

All that the life tenants got from 1893 to 1907 was

practically $6,000.00, not including the Ookala

lease. The trustees have increased the values of

these leaseholds enormously, by subleasing them,

over the way they would have been able to do if

operating it as a ranch.

In view of the abnormal high price of sugar

during the last five years (the witness was testi-

fying in January, 1920), the returns have been

greater during those years than at any time before.

I can't say offhand how it was that the Mokuleia

expenses were so large as $84,424.00, but one large

item was the cleaning of the lantanas which cost us

tholsands of dollars at that time, when the whole

pasture lands all over the Island were covered

with thick lantanas and it was destroying all the
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pastures, the pastures could not, we could not sell

them. I would try to keep the lantanas out and there

was a question whether we were obliged to do it or

not under the terms of the lease, but as trustees we

w^ould not run the risk that Mr. Mendonca might

jack us up and bring this suit against us for not

having kept the lands clean of lantanas. That was

a very great expense, and every yearly account to

the courts mentions a sum we had to spend. [113]

The following figures respecting rents from the

Mokuleia lease are incorporated in this statement

of evidence, by order of the Judge signing same,

over the objection of counsel for the life tenant

appellees that the same are not material to the

issues on this appeal, namely:

Year. Fixed Annual Rents being portion

Rents. of sugars produced.

1894 $2573 . 50 None

1895 2573 . 50 None

1896 2573 . 50 None

1897 2573 . 50 None

1898 3153 . 50)

1899 3153.50)

1900 3153 . 50)

1901 3153 . 50)

1902 3153 . 50) $44,856.62

1903 3153.50) or an average of $4,984.06

1904 3153.50) per annum

1905 2077.50)

1906 2077.50)

1907 2077 . 50 9,418.79
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Year. Fixed Annual Rents being portion

Rents. of sugar produced.

1908 2890.00 5,391.42

1909 2890.00 11,574.67

1910 2965.00 6,889.14

1911 3290.00 14,290.74

1912 3290.00 4,774.19

1913 3852 . 50 12,174.31

1914 4040.00 5,664.70

1915 4040.00 15,966.49

1916 4040.00 12,974.38

1917 4040'. 00 17,456.30

1918 4040.00 15,765.30

1919 4040 . 00 21,817.76

Total fixed rent

—

82,018 . 50

Total sugar rentals. . 199,015.26

Grand Total

82,018.50

281,033.76

The above* total of $281,033.76 is approximate and

is subject to correction. From it must be deducted

the rent paid under the head lease of $1,250.00 for

26 years, namely, $32,500.00, leaving approximately

$248,533.76 from which would also have to be de-

ducted sundry other charges for administering the

trust and incidental purposes, none of which ap-

pear in evidence. [114]
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Testimony of T. H. Petrie, for Complainants.

Mr. T. H. PETEIE, called as a witness by the

guardian ad litem, and (over the objection of coun-

sel for the life tenants, that the present value of

the Mokuleia lease is immaterial and cannot affect

the question of whether or not the trustees should

have converted this lease into cash on the testator's

death), testified as follows:

I am a director of Castle & Cooke, Ltd., agents

for Waialua Agricultural Company which now has

some 865 acres under lease from the trustees of the

James Gay estate at Mokuleia. I am acquainted

with the past record of that lease so far as the

Waialua Sugar Company is concerned. I have the

figures from 1905 to 1919, as the results obtained

from the cultivation of those lands. I have gone

into the value of this leasehold as of the present

time only in a general way. I have considered the

two Waialua subleases and the other subleases—all

•producing a fixed rent of $4,040.00 and one-)

twentieth of the sugar.

^^Q. What value had you put on those leaseholds

as of the present time (January 27, 192.0) ?

A. In answering that question I want it under-

stood, if the Court please, that I am not answering

from the standpoint of an expert on leasehold

values. I am answering that question from the

standpoint of what I would be willing to pay for

this leasehold if it was offered for sale this morn-

ing. I value it at $90,000.00—1 would offer $90,-



130 Eva Gay et al

(Testimony of T. H. Petrie.)

000.00 for it, ... speaking for the Waialua

Agricultural Company of course."

On cross-examination by counsel for the life

tenants Mr. Petrie testified further: [115]

, This figure of $90,000.00 covers all of these

subleases, in some of which the Waialua Agri-

cultural Company is not at present interested. I

haven't given any consideration to the value of the

original Mendonca lease, I haven't seen that lease

except to know what the rental is. The figure is

confined entirely to the amount I would offer for the

series of subleases that were mentioned, as of the

present time. I haven't considered it from any

standpoint of the previous years. This figure of

$90,000.00 would be to buy the whole thing,—with

all of the subleases.

'^Q. That then would be practically the elimina-

tion then of any profit to the Gay estate as the

holder of the principal lease ?

A. Exactly, the lease would be from Mendonca

to us, practically.

Q. In that way eliminate or cut out any obliga-

tion of the Waialua Agricultural Company to pay

rent on the present basis under its subleases?

A. Exactly, yes.

Q. What consideration have you had in mind

in naming that figure of ninety thousand dollars as

the amount you would offer?

A. The results from the time that we have used

and cultivated the lands that we have occupied on
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which rentals that have been paid on the other

basis, and our judgment as to what we might expect

for the future in so far as the cultivation and sale

of sugar is concerned, practically all of that land

outside of the lease to the Chinamen is cultivated in

sugar cane.

Q. That then involves to some extent a matter of

judgment as to what the future will develop for

sugar? A. Exactly.

Q. What the returns of sugar will be hereafter?

A. Yes. [116]

Q. Will you please tell us what you consider would

be the value of this (Mokuleia) lease from the

standpoint of the Gay estate,—the trustees of the

Gay estate?

A. No, I am not prepared to answer that.

Q. You are not then assuming to set any figures

except what the Waialua Agricultural Company
would offer? A. Exactly."

On cross-examination by counsel for the trustees,

Mr. Petrie further testified:

In 1893, when Mr. Gay died, the sugar industry

in the Islands and on this Island was very largely

undeveloped; in 1893 the Ewa Sugar Company was

struggling for its existence, and it was a question

whether Ewa would go under or not,—in 1892 or

1893. At that time the Oahu Sugar Company had

not been started; the Oahu Railway, which to a

great extent made possible three large plantations

on the Ewa side of this Island was, I think, strug-
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gling for an existence. At the time of Mr. Gay's

death it did not extend as far as Ewa (from Hono-

lulu). The present Waialua Agricultural Com-
pany had not been started, but was evolved some

five or seven years later out of a one-horse concern

run by the Halstead Brothers. Waialua Agricultural

Company was organized in 1898, developed and to

take in all the undeveloped lands in that district in-

cluding the Mokuleia section. -That is when it was

taken over and leased by the Waialua Agricultural

Company. I think that was the result, in a very

large measure, of the treaty of annexation of the

Islands in 1898. It was at that same period that

Waialua and other large sugar enterprises were

started throughout these Islands. [117]

(A motion to strike the opinion of Mr. Petrie as

to the value of the Mokuleia lease was denied.)

Testimony of Chas. T. Wilder, for Complainants.

Mr. CHAS. T. WILDER, tax assessor since 1908

for the District where the Mokuleia leasehold

property is situate, called as a witness by the

guardian ad litem, over the objection of counsel for

the life tenants that the point of present value was

immaterial, testified:

'^If the average net income would be the same

for the next fourteen years, and it is on the past

13 years according to these figures you have given

me, if money is worth no more 14 years latel* than

it is now on a basis of these numbers, that (the

present value of the Mokuleia lease) would be $87,-
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359.37. In other words, the lease in 14 years would

take in $197,511.12, which, discounted at the present

time for 14 years, would amount to this, $87,359.37,

or, in other words, $87,359.37, invested to-day at 6%
interest would purchase $197,511.58 in 14 years.''

On cross-examination by counsel for the life

tenants Mr. Wilder testified further:

"Q, Would you wish to be understood as say-

ing in your opinion that is the fair market value

of this lease?

A. Personally I wouldn't take any chance four-

teen years from now on that value. The last four

or five years' rentals have been very large. There

is no guaranty that in ten years they will be that

large.

Q. In other words you have just made hypotheti-

cal calculations as to the present value of this

assured income?

A. I will qualify my statements. If the present

J

price of sugar remains the same, averages the same,

and the price of money the same, that would be

what it would do. [118]

Q. Your personal opinion of the value of the

property doesn't enter into it? A. No."

The following additional evidence was taken at

the second hearing before the Circuit Judge, follow-

ing the rendition of the opinion of the Supreme

Court of the Territory filed April 5, 1921.
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*

Testimony of Herman Focke, for Complaiinants

(Recalled).

Mr. HERMAN EOCKE was recalled as a witness

and, on direct examination by the guardian ad

litem, testified as follows:

I recall that $5,000.00 was the value placed on the

Ookala leasehold in the estate inventory. That

was the value submitted to the Court at the time.

It agreed with my best judgment at the time. We
had to place a value on it, and it is hard for me to

say now on what we based it. ^^I suppose that

—I know that so much sugar was received a year

and I suppose that we took the—eight times of the

rental; that was, in those years, about the value

of the property."

(The witness then identified a statement of the

rentals received under the Ookala lease, gross and

net,—^which Avas received in evidence as Respond-

ents' Minors Exhibit ^^A,"—from the inception of

the trust until the lease finally expired, showing a

total net sum of $34,329.24, of which statement the

following is a full and true copy:)
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(Counsel for the life tenants then made Mr.

Focke their own witness, and the following is here

quoted from the transcript:)

''Mr. WABREN.—I would like to make this ex-

planatory statement in the record, also, that it will

be recalled as pretty well intimated by the Supreme

Court that, in dealing with the Ookala lease, your

Honor didn't go into that as a separate issue particu-

larly,—discussed the case from a very general

standpoint and dealt principally with the Mokuleia

lease.

The COURT.—Yes, that being the matter that

was presented to me.

Mr. WARREN.—Yes, your Honor. So that the

record which went before the Supreme Court con-

tained practically nothing of the nature that I now

wish to have your Honor receive into this record

in order that we may present it, as a matter of

record before the Supreme Court, in an appeal

as I assume will be taken from whatever order your

Honor makes here. The surrounding [120] facts

and circumstances attendant upon the execution of

this will by Mr. Gay. There is nothing in the

record, and we did not anticipate the importance

at the first hearing of indicating to your Honor that

Mr. Gay, at the time he made this will and used

the term 'rents, issues and profits' of his estate

to go to his children for life, that he then knew

he was dying. We want to prove facts that will
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(Testimony of Herman Focke.)

tend—that will show and indicate that Mr. G-ay,

when he made that will, was dying, or believed he

was dying, and, therefore, could not have used the

word ^rent' in that will with respect to the pos-

sible after acquisition of real estate in fee, and that

his use of the word ^rents' in that will had respect

to the only property he owned at the time concern-

ing which he was making his will, namely, these

leaseholds. This might have a very strong bear-

ing on the question whether or not the word ^ rents
^

in that will should be held to apply to leaseholds,

if the Ookala lease did not—would not be con-

verted.

The COURT.—You may go ahead.

Mr. EDMONDSON.—May it please the Court, I

would like to make an objection. The decision of

the Supreme Court says: (Eeads.) In view of

that decision I take it that this evidence would be

ruled out.

The COURT.—I will have your objection noted.

Mr. EDMONDSON.—Might we have an ex-

ception to your Honor's ruling, to every question?

The COURT.—All right, you may do that, to save

the record."

Mr. FOCKE then further testified as follows:

[121]

I had known Mr. James Gay rather intimately

for a considerable number of years before his death

and was in attendance upon him or visiting him

frequently during his last illness. I was present
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at the time this will was executed and on the day

before.

^^Q. Will you state to the Court what you know,

from your own observation of Mr. Gay on the day

he made the will and the day before he made the

will, as to his then condition and any statements he

made respecting himself and his condition?

A. Mr. Gay was very low indeed at that time.

He was in a dying state, and on the day previous to

the making of the will his physician who was at-

tending him and who was a friend of Cecil Brown

and myself came to me and said that he had told

Mr. Gay and spoke to him about his affairs and so

on, and in consequence, Mr. Gay wanted him to

bring Cecil Brown up to make a new will. This

was done on the 2,4th of May. I—the old will was

in my possession; I was told to take it along. I

went and Mr. Gay then gave his instructions to

bring Mr. Brown. The next morning the new will

was presented by Cecil Brown and signed in my
presence by him and in the presence of the wit-

nesses, who were Tom Gay, a brother of Gay, and

the brother-in-law of Mr. Gay, Mr. Eichardson, and

Cecil Brown.''

Mr. Gay told me to destroy the old will and to

keep the new will. I have said that he was dying

because I personally observed his condition. He-

had a hemorrhage and also an accident on the ranch;

he was kicked by a horse and brought to town. He
could not move and he was swelling. He had

Bright 's disease; dropsy set in and worked its
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way upwards and he was swelling inwards, up
about the body. He was very weak and had cough-

ing spells and spoke in a low voice. I myself ob-

verved [122] the progress of his disease for

several days prior to his death. On May 24th Dr.

Trousseau came in and told me that he could not

save him, that he was in a very low condition and

spoke of the dropsy and of his Bright 's disease.

^^The COURT.—Q. Well, he was a very sick

man and in a dying condition?

A. Yes, absolutely."

''Mr. WARREN.—I would like the record to

show that the reason of this offer is because the

Supreme Court specifically said 'under those cir-

cumstances,' indicating that they made that deci-

sion upon a record which didn't disclose this fact.

The COURT.—All right."

Testimony of H. D. Young, for Respondents.

Mr. H. D. YOUNG, called as a witness by the

life tenants, testified as follows:

I am manager of the Audit Company of Hawaii,

Limited.

(Here Mr. Edmondson conceded the qualifications

of Mr. Young as an accountant and actuary. He
was handed Respondents' Minors Exhibit "A," be-

ing a statement of gross and net rentals received

under the Ookala lease above set forth, and then

testified as follows:)

Given the case of James Gay dying in May of

1893, when he held the lease called the Ookala lease,
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under which, after his death, rents were received,

gross and net, as shown by this statement.

Q. ^'Now, I want to ask you, Mr. Young, in your

opinion as an accountant and actuary, given in this

case : James Gay dying in May of 1893 held a lease

called the Ookala lease, under which, after his

death, rents were received in gross amounting as

shown by this statement, a net amount as shown by

this statement. Assuming that, as an actuary, you

are asked to state the method [123] and means

by which you would calculate the amounts that

should be put by by the trustees to equal $34,--

329.24, at the expiration of the lease in 1908, what

would be the correct method of determining the

amounts that should be put by by the trustees each

year out of these rents to arrive at that result, so

that at the expiration of the lease the total full

amount of rent actually received would be on hand ?

Mr. EDMONDSON.—I object to the question, if

the Court please, on the ground that the method of

determining the value of this Ookala property is

for your Honor to decide and not for a witness to

decide.

(Argument.)

The COURT.—Objection is overruled."

I would say that the method and means to cal-

culate the amount that should be put by by the

trustees to equal $34,329.24 at the expiration of the

lease in 1908 would be that of calculating the pres-

ent value of each sum as it was received in each

year as of the date of death. The sum total of
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those values would represent the total present

value of all amounts so received as each installment

was received and the present value would be with-

held or deducted and reinvested at the usual rate

of six per cent and each installment as invested ac-

cumulates interest which, as received from time to

time, would be reinvested; and at the determina-

tion of the period the full sum required would be

on hand. I have taken these figures shown by this

statement as the net rentals for each year and made

the following computations: [124]

(Here is given a full copy of the statement 0:6

calculations produced by the witness, the same be-

ing marked Life Tenants' Exhibit 1.)
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Testimony of Herman Focke, for Respondents

(Recalled—Cross-examination) .

Mr. FOCKE was recalled as a witness and on

cross-examination by counsel for the life tenants

testified

:

In reference to the value of $5,000 which was

placed in the estate inventory for the Ookala lease,

it was at that time customary to take eight years

rental of a lease as about the value of the capital of

the property. At that time we only had knowledge

that the contract with the Ookala Plantation was

to run for seven years only. The lease was ex-

tended by the Government before Mr. Gay died, but

the contract with the Ookala Plantation [125]

was not extended. In 1893 when we were not as-

suming to consider the Ookala contract as lasting

more than seven years, the rent for that year was

$642.79, represented in the value of the sugar for

1893. If on my knowledge of the conditions at

that time the Ookala lease had been put up for

sale, I don't think it would have fetched—I don't

know now because all we know is that we received

so much more sugar in later years. If I had been

able at that time to know and have it before me the

figures of rent that have come in I would certainly

never have conceived of valuing that lease at $5,-

000,00.

(On July 29 Mr. Edmondson, referring to Mr.

Gay's testimony giving the day before as above

shown, asked and obtained leave of the Court to

state the reasons for his objection and exception
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thereto taken the day before as follows: ^^On the

ground that the evidence is incompetent, irrelevant

and immaterial and beyond the scope of this

hearing.")

Approved this 16th day of February, 1923.

[Seal] ANTONIO PERRY,
^Associate Justice Supreme Court of the Territory

of Hawaii. [126]

Certificate of Justice Under Equity Rule 75 Re

Statement of Evidence and Record Relating

Thereto.

This is to certify that on the 16th day of Decem-

ber, 1922, the minor respondents by their guardian

ad litem, appellants, lodged in the office of the Clerk

of the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii

their proposed statement of the evidence to be in-

cluded in the record on appeal in the above-entitled

cause under paragraph (b) of Equity Rule 75, and

on the same day gave due notice to the attorneys

for the other parties of the lodgment of such state-

ment of evidence, naming the time and place when

and where they would ask the undersigned to ap-

prove such statement of evidence, such time and

place so named being at least ten days after such

notice.

Within the time limited therefor the life tenants

respondents-appellees lodged their objections and

proposed amendments to said proposed statement

of the evidence, and the same were heard and dis-

posed of by the undersigned who directed the state-
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ment of the evidence and record relating thereto to

be redrafted with such alterations and amendments

thereto as were allowed, and the same having been

so redrafted and presented to the undersigned, in

the full and complete form above appearing, the

same is hereby approved by the undersigned to be

'filed in the office of the Clerk of the said Supreme

Court as the statement of the evidence to be in-

cluded in the record on appeal in the above-entitled

cause, including the matters incorporated therein

relating to offers of evidence, objections to evidence,

and rulings thereon, as a part of said record on ap-

peal allowable [127] in conformity with para-

graph (c) of Equity Eule 75.

Dated Honolulu, T. H., February 16, 1923.

[Seal] ANTONIO PERRY,
Associate Justice, Supreme Court, Territory of

Hawaii.

Approved (without waiving the objections noted

in said record as made by the undersigned) :

W. O. SMITH and

L. J. WARREN,
Attorneys for Life Tenants Respondents-Appellees.

W. L. STANLEY,
Attorney for Complainants-Appellees. [128]

Service of the within statement of evidence is

hereby admitted this day of February, 1923.

Attorneys for Life Tenants Respondents-Appellees

.

Attorney for Complainants-Appellees.



148 Eva Gay et al

[Endorsed]: No. 1348. In the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Judicial Cir-

cuit. H. Focke et al, Complainants, vs. Llewellyn

Napela Gay et al.. Respondents. Statement of Evi-

dence and Certificate Relating Thereto. Filed Feb-

ruary 16, 19,23, at 11:55 A. M. J. A. Thompson,

Clerk Supreme Court of Hawaii. [129]

In the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii.

October Term, 1922.

APPEAL FROM CIRCUIT JUDGE FIRST CIR-

CUIT.

H. FOCKE and H. M. von HOLT, Trustees Under

the Will and of the Estate of JAMES GAY,
Deceased,

Complainants,

vs.

LLEWELLYN NAPELA GAY, REGINALD
ERIC GAY, ARTHUR FRANCIS GAY,
ALICE MARY K. RICHARDSON, HELEN
FANNY GAY, FRIDA GAY, EVA GAY,
a Minor, BEATRICE GAY, a Minor,

SONNY JAMES MOKULEIA GAY, a

Minor, MICHAEL VANATTA K. GAY, a

Minor, ALBERT GAY HARRIS, a Minor,

WALTER WILLIAM HOLT, a Minor,

ALICE K. HOLT, a Minor, and ETHEL
FRIDA HOLT, a Minor,

Respondents.
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Certificate of the Clerk of the Supreme Court of

the Territory of Hawaii to the Transcript of

Record on Appeal.

Territory of Hawaii,

City and County of Honolulu,—ss.

I, James A. Thompson, Clerk of the Supreme

Court of the Territory of Hawaii, by virtue of the

petition for appeal, filed June 30, 1922, in the above-

entitled cause, the original whereof is attached to

the foregoing transcript, being pages 70 to 71, both

inclusive, and in pursuance to the praecipe filed

December 18, 1922, on behalf, of the minor respond-

ents, and of the praecipe filed December 26, 1922,

on behalf of the respondents-appellees, to me
directed, copies whereof are attached to the fore-

going transcript, being pages 99 to 102, both in-

clusive, and pages 103 to 104, both inclusive, thereof,

DO HEREBY TRANSMIT to the Honorable

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, the foregoing transcript of record,

being pages 1 to 55, both inclusive, AND I CER-
TIFY [130] the same to be full, true and correct

copies of the pleadings, record, entries and opinions

which are now on file in the office of the Clerk of

the Supreme Court of the Territory of Hawaii in the

cause entitled ^^H. Focke and H. M. von Holt,

trustees under the Will and of the Estate of James

Gay, deceased, complainants, versus Llewellyn Na-

pela Gay, Reginald Eric Gay, Arthur Francis Gay,

Alice Mary K. Richardson, Helen Fanny Gay, Frida
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Gay; Eva Gay, a minor, Beatrice Gay, a minor,

Sonny James Mokuleia Gay, a minor, Michael

Vanatta K. Gay, a minor, Albert Gay Harris, a

minor, Walter William Holt, a minor, Alice K. Holt,

a minor, and Ethel Prida Holt, a minor, Respond-

ents," and Numbered 1273.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that pages 56 to 69,

both inclusive, pages 80 to 82, both inclusive, and

page 92, of the foregoing transcript of record are

full, true and correct copies of the pleadings, record,

entries, opinions and j&nal decree which are now

on file in the office of the Clerk of the Supreme

Court of the Territory of Hawaii, in a cause as

above entitled and Numbered 1348.

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the Original

Assignment of Errors, being pages 72 to 77, both

inclusive, the Original Order Allowing Appeal,

being pages 78 to 79, both inclusive, the Original

Citation on Appeal, with admissions of service of

copies thereof by W. L. Stanley, Esq., Attorney

for complainants-appellees, and by W. O. Smith,

Esq., and L. J. Warren, Esq., attorneys for respond-

ents-appellees, being pages 83 to 85, both inclusive,

the Original Order filed July 17, 1922, extending

time for preparation and transmission of record

to September 30, 1922, being pages 86 to 88, both

inclusive; the Original Order filed September 18,

1922, extending time for preparation and trans-

mission of record to November 30, 1922, being pages

89 to 91, both inclusive; the original order filed

November 17, [131] 1922, extending time for pre-

paration and transmission of record to December 30,
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1922, being pages 93 to 95, both inclusive, the origi-

nal order filed December 18, 1922, extending time

for preparation and transmission of record to Feb-

ruary 15, 1923, being pages 96 to 98, both inclusive

;

the original order filed February 2, 1923, extending

time for preparation and transmission of record to

April 5, 1923, being pages "105 to 107, both inclusive,

and the original statement of evidence, filed Febru-

ary 16, 1923, with the certificate of Hon. Antonio

Perry, Associate Justice of the Supreme Court of

the Territory of Hawaii to said statement of evi-

dence, being pages 108 to 129, both inclusive, of the

foregoing transcript of record, are herewith re-

turned.

I LASTLY CERTIFY that the cost of the fore-

going transcript of record is $80.25, and the said

amount has been paid by H. Edmondson, Esq., at-

torney and guardian ad litem for the minor respond-

ents, appellants herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set

my hand and affixed the seal of the Supreme Court

of the Territory of Hawaii, at Honolulu, City and

County of Honolulu, this 24th day of February,

A. D. 1923.

[Seal] JAMES A. THOMPSON,
Clerk of the Supreme Court of the Territory of

Hawaii. [132]

[Endorsed]: No. 3989. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Eva Gay,

a Minor, Beatrice Gay, a Minor, Sonny Jame^
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Mokuleia Gay, a Minor, Michael Vanatta K. Gay,

a Minor, Llewellyn Napela Gay, a Minor, Albert

Gay Harris, a Minor, Walter William Holt, a

Minor, Alice K. Holt, a Minor, and Ethel Frida

Holt, a Minor, by Harry Edmondson, Their Guard-

ian Ad Litem, Appellants, vs. H. Focke and H. M.

von Holt, Trustees Under the Will of the Estate

of James Gay, Deceased, and Llewellyn Napela

Gay, Reginald Eric Gay, Arthur Francis Gay, Alice

Mary K. Richardson, Helen Fanny Gay and Frida

Gay, Appellees. Transcript of Record. Upon Ap-

peal from the Supreme Court for the Territory of

Hawaii.

Filed March 5, 1923.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

By Paul P. O'Brien,

Deputy Clerk. '>f


